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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of IndiaMART InterMESH Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of IndiaMART InterMESH Limited (hereinafter referred 
to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to 
as “the Group”), and its associates, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the 
consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income (loss)), consolidated statement 
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the 
consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries and associates as 
were audited by the other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required 
by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the  accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its 
associates as at 31 March 2022, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes 
in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of 
the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and its 
associates in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the 
relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of reports of the 
other auditors referred to in paragraph (a) of the “Other Matters” section below, is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the consideration of 
reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of components audited by them, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Description of Key Audit Matter 

Revenue Recognition  
See note 2.3(d) and 19 to the consolidated financial statements 

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit 
The Group generates revenue primarily from web 
services and follows a prepaid model for its business.  
 
Revenue from web services is recognised over the 
period of the contract as and when the Group 
satisfies performance obligations by actually 
rendering the promised services to its customers.  
 
These services are delivered using IT systems which 
manage very high volume on daily basis and 
generate reports from which the Group recognises 
revenue, and hence there is inherent risk around the 
existence and accuracy of revenue recognition.  
 
We have identified revenue recognition from web 
services as a key audit matter because of the 
significance of web service revenue to the financial 
statements and its recognition based on high volume 
of data generated by internal IT systems.  
 

In view of the significance of the matter we 
applied the following audit procedures in this area, 
among others to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence: 
• We assessed the appropriateness of the 

revenue recognition accounting policy and its 
compliance with applicable accounting 
standards.  
 

• We evaluated the design and implementation 
of key internal financial controls and 
operating effectiveness of the relevant key 
controls with respect to existence and 
accuracy of revenue recognition on selected 
transactions. 

 
• We, with the involvement of IT specialists, 

evaluated the design, implementation and 
operating effectiveness of management’s 
general IT controls and key application 
controls over the Group’s IT systems which 
govern revenue recognition, including access 
controls, controls over program changes and 
interfaces between different systems. 
 

• We selected a sample of transactions using 
statistical sampling and performed tests of 
details including reading the contract, 
identifying performance obligation and its 
link with actual rendition to assess whether the 
criteria for revenue recognition are met. 

 
• We tested completeness and accuracy of web 

services revenue and collection from 
underlying relevant source documents 
generated by IT systems with accounting 
system. 

 
• We assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the 

consolidated financial statements. 
 

 

 

Other Information  

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. 
The other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s annual report, but 
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done/ audit 
report of other auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements  

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give 
a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive 
income (loss), consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group 
including its associates in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The 
respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its 
associates are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements by the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors 
of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of 
each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends 
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are 
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company.  

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these consolidated financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.  
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 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern 
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associates to cease to continue as 
a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements/financial information 
of such entities or business activities within the Group and its associates to express an opinion on 
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated 
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the 
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors 
remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. 
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our responsibilities in this regard are further 
described in paragraph (a) of the section titled “Other Matters” in this audit report.  

 
We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and 
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.  

Other Matters  

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of four subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect 
total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of INR 863.09 Million as at 31 March 2022, total 
revenues (before consolidation adjustments) of INR 34.80 Million and net cash outflows (before 
consolidation adjustments) amounting to INR 8.49 Million for the year ended on that date, as 
considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also 
include the Group’s share of net loss (and other comprehensive income (loss)) of INR 97.83 Million 
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for the year ended 31 March 2022, in respect of two associates, whose financial statements have 
not been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose 
reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial 
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these 
subsidiaries and associates, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in
so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associates is based solely on the reports of the 
other auditors.

(b) The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net loss (and other
comprehensive income (loss)) of INR 24.6 Million for the year ended 31 March 2022, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of five associates, whose financial
information have not been audited by us or by other auditors. These unaudited financial information
have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
associates, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid associates, is based solely on such unaudited financial information. In our opinion
and according to the information and explanations given to us by the Management, these financial
information are not material to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the 
work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial information certified by the 
Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of
reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiaries and
associates as were audited by other auditors, as noted in the “Other Matters” paragraph, we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

c) The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including
other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31 March 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and two
associate companies incorporated in India, and on the basis of written representations
received by the management from directors of its five associate companies incorporated
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in India, none of the directors of the Group companies and its associate companies 
incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.  

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
“Annexure B”. Further, the associate companies incorporated in India have been 
exempted from the requirement of its auditor reporting on whether the company has 
adequate internal financial control system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls. 

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the 
consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the 
subsidiaries and associates, as noted in the “Other Matters” paragraph: 

a) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 
March 2022 on the consolidated financial position of the Group and its associates.  Refer 
Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements. 

b) The Group and its associates did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2022. 

c) There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies or associate 
companies incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2022. 

d) (i) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries and associates 
which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been 
audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such 
subsidiaries and associates respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, 
other than as disclosed in note 12(1) to the accounts, no funds have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies or 
associate companies incorporated in India to or in any other persons or entities, 
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:  

 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Holding 
Company, its subsidiary companies or associate companies incorporated in India 
or  

 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. 

(ii) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries and associates 
which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been 
audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such 
subsidiaries and associates respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, 
as disclosed in note 12(1) to the accounts, no funds have been received by the 
Holding Company, its subsidiary companies or associate companies incorporated in 
India from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding 
Company, its subsidiary companies or associate companies incorporated in India 
shall:  



B S R & Co. LLP

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding
Parties or

provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-
statement.

e) The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company is in compliance
with Section 123 of the Act.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of
the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on
the reports of the statutory auditors of such subsidiary companies incorporated in India which
were not audited by us, the remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies to its directors is in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act. The associate companies are private limited companies and
accordingly the requirements as stipulated by the provisions of section 197 (16) are not
applicable to the associate companies. The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section
197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 April 2022

Kanika Kohli
Partner
Membership No: 511565
ICAI UDIN: 

KANIKA 
KOHLI

Digitally signed 
by KANIKA KOHLI 
Date: 2022.04.28 
15:38:38 +05'30'
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on Consolidated Financial Statements
(Referred to in our report of even date)

(i) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no qualifications
or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 reports
of the Holding company, subsidiary companies and one associate company, included in the consolidated
financial statements.

The above does not include comments, if any, in respect of the following associate companies
incorporated in India as the CARO report relating to them has not been issued by their auditors till the
date of this audit report:

Name of the entities CIN Subsidiary/ JV/ Associate

Shipway Technology Private Limited U72300HR2015PTC056319 Associate

Truckhall Private Limited U60221WB2016PTC217183 Associate

Agillos E-Commerce Private Limited U52300KA2016PTC092938 Associate

Edgewise Technologies Private Limited U72200KA2015PTC078474 Associate

IB MonotaRO Private Limited U52609DL2020PTC366962 Associate

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of one associate company 
incorporated in India, CARO is not applicable.

Name of the entity CIN Subsidiary/ JV/ Associate

Ten Times Online Private Limited U72300DL2014PTC265480 Associate

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.101248W/W-100022

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 April 2022

Kanika Kohli 
Partner
Membership No. 511565 
ICAI UDIN: X

KANIKA 
KOHLI

Digitally signed 
by KANIKA KOHLI 
Date: 2022.04.28 
15:39:09 +05'30'
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s report on the consolidated financial statements of 
IndiaMART InterMESH Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report of even date) 

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of IndiaMART InterMESH 
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 
2022, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
of the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 2013 
which are its subsidiary companies, as of that date. 

In our opinion, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its subsidiary 
companies, have, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 
31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements criteria established by such companies considering the essential components of such 
internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”). 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respective Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on the 
criteria established by the respective Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”). 

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. 
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of the internal controls based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
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depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of 
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other 
auditors of the relevant subsidiary companies in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters 
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of 
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to consolidated Financial 
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 
of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of 
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates 
to four subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding 
reports of the auditors of such subsidiary companies incorporated in India.

Place: Gurugram
Date:  28 April 2022

For B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration No: 101248W/W-100022 

Kanika Kohli
Partner
Membership No:511565
ICAI UDIN: 

KANIKA 
KOHLI

Digitally signed by 
KANIKA KOHLI 
Date: 2022.04.28 
15:39:41 +05'30'



IndiaMART InterMESH Limited 

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022 

(Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated) 

Assets 

Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 

Capital work in progress 

Right-of-use asset 

Intangible assets 

Investment in associates 

Financial assets 

(i) Investments 

(ii) Loans 

(ii) Others financial assets 

Non-current tax assets (net) 

Other non-current assets 

Total Non-current assets 

Current assets 

Financial assets 
(i) Investments 

(ii) Trade receivables 

(11) Cash and cash equivalents 

(iv) Bank balances other than (i11) above 

(v) Loans 

(vi) Others financial assets 

Current tax assets (net) 

Other current assets 

Total current assets 

Total Assets 

Equity and Liabilities 

Equity 

Share capital 

Other equity 

Total Equity 

Liabilities 

Non-current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

(i) Lease habilities 

Contract liabilities 
Provisions 

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

Total Non-current liabilities 

Current liabilities 

Financial liabilities 

(i) Lease liabilities 

(ii) Trade payables 

As at 

Notes 31 March 2022 

5A 30.62 
5A 177 
SB $28.43 
6 1.59 
7 2,490.27 

8 1,719.03 
8 0.82 
8 39.22 
18 233.96 
9 40.95 

5,086.68 

8 23,007.65 
10 13.26 
ul 495.47 
VT 272.77 
8 448 39 
8 118.50 
18 ws 
9 45.79 

24,401.83 

9,488.51 

12 305.53 
13 18,435.00 

18,740.53 

  

(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises : 
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises 

Git) Other financial liabilities 

Contract liabilities 

Other current habilities 

Provisions 

Total Current liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

15 (a) 

17 

16 

26 

15 (a) 100.41 

l4 

183.57 

15 (b) 203.00 
17 5,754.18 

\7 290.93 

16 30.28 

6,582.37 

10,747.98 

29,488.51 

As at 

31 March 2021 

22.31 

1.77 

625.65 

2.71 

269.94 

99.99 

2.37 

38.72 

186.60 

17.46 

1,267.52 

22,174.36 

12.46 

401.19 

376.08 

709.25 

76.75 

56.62 

40.35 

23,847.06. 

5,114.58 

303.16 

15,805.68 

16,108.84 

25.67 

2,584.75 

275.36 

207.20 

3,592.98 

108.57 

154.28 

201 40 

4,676.26 

223,82 

  

9,005.74 

25,114.58 

  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For BSR & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022 

Digitally signed by 
KANIKA KANIKA KOHL 

Date: 2022.04.28 
KOHLI 15:31:18 +05'30" 

Kanika Kohli 

Partner 

Membership No.: 511565 

Place Gurugram 

Date 28 April 2022 

  

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

IndiaMART InterMESH Li 

     
(Managing Director and CEQ) 

DIN:00191800 

ndao™ 
rateek Chandra 

(Chief Financial Officer) 

   

Place: Noida 
Date: 28 April 2022 

 



IndiaMART InterMESH Limited 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated) 

Income: 

Revenue from operations 

Other income 

Total income 

Expenses: 

Employee benefits expense 

Finance costs 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Other expenses 

Total expenses 

Net profit before share of loss in associates and tax 

Share in net loss of associates 

Profit before tax 

Income tax expense 

Current tax 

Deferred tax 

Tax Impact related to change in tax rate and law 

Total tax expense 

Net profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Re-measurement gain/(losses) on defined benefit plans 

Income tax effect 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Earnings per equity share: 

Basic earnings per equity share (INR) - face value of INR 10 each 

Diluted earnings per equity share (INR) - face value of INR 10 each 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

Notes 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

26 

26 

26 

25 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For BSR & Co, LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022 

KANIKA 22% 
KOHLI 155235 v05'30" 

Kanika Kohli 

Partner 

Membership No.: 511565 

Place: Gurugram 

Date: 28 April 2022 

  

For the year ended 

31 Mareh 2022 
For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

7,534.85 6,695.62 

1,121.94 865.84 

8,656.79 7,561.46 

2,675.52 2,052.13 

$4.02 66.63 

119.46 160.65 

1,780.87 1,361.92 

4,629.87 3,641.33 

4,026.92 3,920.13 

(122.49) (26.60) 

3,904.43 3,893.53 

980.47 639.25 

(52.22) 347.32 

- 109.22 

928.25 1,095.79 

2,976.18 2,797.74 

4.50 (23.99) 

(1.44) 621 

3.06 (17.78) 

3.06 (17.78) 

2,979.24 2,779.96 

97.82 96.15 

96.84 94.58 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

IndiaMART InterMESH Limited 

Vee 
— 

Dinesh Chandra Agarwal 

rateck Chandra 

(Chief Financial Officer) 

Place: Noida 

Date: 28 April 2022 

  

Brijesh Kumyr Agrawal 

(Managing Director and CEO) (Whole-time director) 

DIN: 

  

191760 

 



IndiaMART InterMESH Limited 

Consolidated Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 Mareh 2022 

{Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated) 

(a) Equity share capital (Refer Note 12) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

   

  

Equit ares of INR 10 each issu ubscribed and fully paid up Amount 

As at 1 April 2020 (288.77 

Equity shares issued on exercise of ESOP during the vear 0.67 
Equity shares issued on Qualified Institutions Placcment during the year (refer notc 12.42 
121) 
Equity shares issued during the year to Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust (refer note 1358 
124d) 

Equity shares issued during the year and held by Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust (0.05) 
as at year end (refer note 12(d)) 

As at 31 Mareh 2021 303.16 

As at 1 April 2021 303.16 
Equity shares issued on exercise of ESOP during the year (refer note 12) 0.28 
Equity shares issued to Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust during the year (refer note 1.73 
12¢@) 

Equity shares issued during the earlier year to Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust O48 

and transferred to employees pursuant to SAR exercised during the year (refer 
note 12) 
Equity shares issued du the vear and held by Indiaman Employee Benefit Trust (12), 
asal year end (refer note 12(d)} 

As at 31 March 2022 305.53} 
  

(b) Other equity (Refer Note 13) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

                

Particulars Reserves and surplus Total other equity 
Securities premium General reserve |Employce share based ‘Capital reserve Retained earnings 

payment reserve 

Balance av at | April 2020 4,753.90) 8.45) 116.16) 2.04) (2,414.67) 2,461.80) 

Profit for the year -| - + -| 2,797.74 2,797.74 

Other comprehensive loss for the year + y | 4 (17.78) (17.78) 
Total comprehensive income =| 3 -| - 2,779.96 2,779.96, 
Issuc of equity shares on exercise of ESOP during the year 57.30) + (31.30)} -| « 6,00 

Issue of equity shares on Qualified Institutions Placement during the year (refer 10.499.57| 10.499.57 
note 12(1}) 

Emplovee share based payment expense (Refer Note 21) «| -| 58.83 -| - 58.83 

ESOP surrendered of subsidiay company + + (25.83) - 25,83 “| 
Adjustment for loss of control in Subsidiary + + (0.48)| 2.04 (2.04) (O48) 

Balance as at 31 March 2021 15,310.77 8.45) 97.38 _ 389.08 15,805.68 

Balance as at 1 April 2021 15,310.77 8.45) 97.38 -| 389.08 15,805.68) 
Profit for the year + - -| 2,976.18 2,976.18 

(Other comprehensive income for the year - -| -| - 3.06) 3.06 

‘Total comprehensive income | +] :| -| 2,979.24) 2,979.24) 

Issue of equity: shares on exercise of share based awards during the year TLAG A (69.95) 1 3 
Employee share based payment expense (Refer Note 21) -| 4 102,73 + +] 102.73 

Final dividend paid (INR 1/- per share for financial year ended 31 March 2021) -| ; | -| (455 .16)] (455.16) 

Balanee as at 31 Mareh 2022 15,383.23) 8.45) 130.16) =| 2,913.16) 18,435.00)   
  

Profit of INR 3.06 Mns and loss of INR 17.78 Mns on remeasurement of defined cmployee benefit plans(net of tax) is recognised as a part of retained earnings for year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, respectively. 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For BSR & Co. LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 11248 W/W-100022 
icitally signed 

KANIKA prtantea ton 
KOHLI ‘essco+0330" 

Kanika Kohli 
Partner 
Membership No. 511565 

Place: Gurugram 

Date: 28 April 2022 

  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
IndiaMART InterMESH Limited 

  

(Managing Difector and CEO) 
DIN:00191800 

\o Chandra 
(Chief Financial Officer) 

Place: Noida 
Date: 28 April 2022 

 



IndiaMART InterMESH Limited 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars Notes 

Profit before tax 

Adjustmeuts fo reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows: 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 

Interest, dividend and other income 20 

Gain on de-recognition of Right-of-use assets 20 

Provisions and liabilities no longer required written back 

Gain/(loss) on investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 20 

-Fair value gain on measurement and income from sale of mutual funds, bonds, debentures, 

of investment trust and alternative investment funds 

  

u 

-Fair value gain on measurement of Investment in other entities 

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 20 

Finance costs 22 

Allowances for doubtful debts 
Share-based payment expense 21 

Share of net loss of associates 

Loss on change of control of a subsidiary converted into an associate 

Changes in: 

Trade receivables 

Other financial assets 

Other assets 

Other financial labilities 

Trade payables 

Contract liabilities 

Provisions and other liabilities 

Cash generated from operations 

Income tax paid (net) 

Net cash generated from operating activities 

Cash flow from investing activities 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, other intangible assets and capital advances 

Purchase of current investments. 

Inter-corporate deposits placed with financials institutions 

Redemption of inter-corporate deposits placed with financials institutions 

Proceeds from sale of current investments 

Interest and dividend received 

Refund of refundable security deposits for listing on stock exchange 

Investment in bank deposits (includes earmarked balances with bank) (having original 

maturity of more than three months) 

Redemption of bank deposits 

Investment in associates and other entities 

Proceeds from sale of dilution of Stake, net of cash paid 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flow from financing activities 

Repayment of lease liabilities 

Interest paid on lease liabilities 

Dividend paid 

Proceeds from issue of equity shares on Qualified Institutional Placement 

Proceeds from issue of equity shares on exercise of share based awards 

Net cash (used in) generated from financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year I 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year i 

bo Summary of significant accounting policies 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached 

For BSR & Co. LLP 

Chartered Accotmants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022 
Digitally signed by 

KAN IKA KANIKA KOHLI 

Date: 2022.04.28 
KOHLI 15:35:44 +05'30' 

Kanika Kohli 

Partner 

Membership No.: 511565 

Place: Gurugram 

Date: 28 April 2022 

  

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

  

  

    

3,904.43 3,893.53 

119.46 160.65 
(60.87) (7.71) 
(1.76) (10.02) 
(7.30) (22.93) 

(1,030.24) (793.52) 

(7-72) - 
(1 56) (1.66) 
$4.02 66.63 
0:72 : 

102.73 58.83 

122.49 26.60 
2.04 

3,194.40 3,342.44 

(151) 264 
(62.31) (2.34) 
(5.20) 9.89 

1.62 (42.16) 
29.29 (21.00) 

1,809.37 416.23 
28.70 107.74 

4,994.36 3,813.44 

(971.22) (588.41) 

4,023.14 3,225.03 

1.81 3.44 

(44.18) (0.34) 

(27,343.20) (15,528.19) 
(437.03) (701.91) 
721.60 = 

27,023.05 2,850.76 

174.55 32.84 
- 23.78 

(274.66) (12.11) 

377.97 54.59 

(3,954.16) (99.98) 
- 0.90 

(3,353.65) (13,376.22) 

(71.02) (55.42) 
(54.02) (66,63) 

(455.05) (14.91) 

z 10,511.99 
4.88 7.97 

(875.21) 10,383.00 

94.28 231.81 

401.19 169.38 
401.19 

  

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 

IndiaMART InterMESH Limited 

(Managing: Dfrector and CEO) 

DIN-0019 1800 

alee 
Prateek Chandra 

(Chief Financial Officer) 

Place: Noida 
Date: 28 April 2022 

    

    
   

Manoj Bha\gava 

(Company Secretary)



IndiaMART Intermesh Limited 
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated) 

. Corporate Information 

IndiaMART Intermesh Limited (“the Company” or “the Parent Company’’) is a public company domiciled in India 

and was incorporated on 13 September 1999 under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The 

company and its consolidated subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Group”) is engaged in e- 

marketplace for business needs, which acts as an interactive hub for domestic and international buyers and 

suppliers. The registered office of the Company is located at Ist Floor, 29-Daryagang, Netaji Subash Marg New 
Delhi-110002, India. 

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by Board 

of Directors on 28 April 2022. 

. Significant accounting policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis as explained in the 

accounting policies below, except for the following: 

e certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value where Ind AS requires a different accounting 

treatment (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments); 

e — share-based payments 

e net defined benefit (asset)/liability - Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit 

obligations. 

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates 

and judgements. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group’s 

accounting policies. The areas where estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, or areas 

involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, are disclosed in Note 3. 

2.2 Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries and 

associates as at 31 March 2022. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns 

from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the 

investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has: 

@ Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of 

the investec) 

e Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and 

e The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns 

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption 

and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all 

relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including: 

e The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee 

e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements 

e The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights 

e The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other 

voting rights holders 

 



IndiaMART Intermesh Limited 

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated) 

Group subsidiaries and associates are as follows: 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Proportion of Proportion of 

S. Name of subsidiaries and Associates and date of | ownership interest ownership interest as 

No. | shareholding as at 31 March, at 31 March 2021 

2022 

| Tradezeal Online Private Limited (from May 100,00% 100.00% 

31,2005) (formerly Known as _ Tradezeal 

International Limited) 

2 Hello Trade Online Private Limited (from July 100.00% 100.00% 

03,2008) 

3 Ten Times Online Private Limited (associate with 30.00% 100.00% 

effect from 1 September 2020) 

4 Tolexo Online Private Limited (from May 28, 2014) 100.00% 100.00% 

5 Pay With IndiaMART Private Limited (from 100,00% 100.00% 

February 7, 2017) 

6 Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited (from February 27.00% 26.00% 

22, 2022) (on Fully diluted (on Fully diluted 
basis) basis) 

7 Truckhall Private Limited (from June 5, 2021) 25.02% - 

(on Fully diluted 

basis) 

§ Shipway Technologies Private Limited (from April 26.00% - 

29, 2021) (on Fully diluted 

basis) 

9 Agillos E-Commerce Private Limited (from August 26.23% - 

13, 2021) (on Fully diluted 
basis) 

10 | Edgewise Technologies Private Limited (from 26.01% - 
February 4, 2022) (on Fully diluted 

basis) 

11 IB Monotaro Private Limited (from March 3, 2022) 26.00% 

(on Fully diluted 

basis)             
The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are 

changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group 
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, 

income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year/quarter are included in the 
consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control 

the subsidiary. 

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other 

events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the 
consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate 

adjustments are made to that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial 

statements to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies. 

 



IndiaMART Intermesh Limited 
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated) 

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date 

as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on 31 March 2022 since the Group’s subsidiaries and associate have 

the same reporting period end. 

Consolidation procedure: 

a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of 

its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the 

assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date. 

b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion 

of equity of each subsidiary. 

c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to 

transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are 
recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate 

an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes 

applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup 

transactions. 

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of 

the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, if any, even if this results in the non-controlling 

interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of 

subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group 

assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the 

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. 

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity 

transaction, If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it: 

e Derecognises the assets (including goodwill, 1f any) and liabilities of the subsidiary 

e Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests 

e Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity 

e Recognises the fair value of the consideration received 

e Recognises the fair value of any investment retained 

e Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss 

e  Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained 

earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or 

habilities 

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies 

The accounting policies, as set out in the following paragraphs of this note, have been consistently applied, by all 

the group entities, to all the periods presented in these consolidated financial statements except where a newly 

issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change 
in the accounting policy. 

a) Statement of Compliance 

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been prepared in accordance with 

the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013 

(“the Act’) (as amended from time to time). 

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest INR million as 

per the requirement of Schedule ILI, unless otherwise stated. 

b) Current versus non-current classification 

 



IndiaMART Intermesh Limited 
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated) 
  

The Group presents assets and liabilities in balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is 

classified as current when it is: 

(i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 

(ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading 

(iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

(iv) A cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at 

least twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when: 

(i) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
(iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

(iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 

the reporting period. 

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing/servicing and their realisation in 

cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

c) Fair value measurement 

The Group measures financial instruments, such as Investment in equity/preference/debt instrument of other 

entities, Investment in mutual funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment funds and investment trust 

at fair value at each balance sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 

that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

(i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 

pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate 

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 

would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 

available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 

unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are 

categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the degree to which the inputs to the 
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its 

entirety: 

(i) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

(ii) Level 2 — inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset 

or liability, either directly or indirectly, and 

 



IndiaMART Intermesh Limited 

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated) 
  

(iii) Level 3 — Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting Group’s assumptions about pricing 

by market participants 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on fair value on a recurring 
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 

categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the 

end of each reporting period, 

The Group’s management determines the policies and procedures for recurring fair value measurement, such as 

investment in equity/preference/debt instruments of other entities measured at fair value. 

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as unquoted investments in 

equity/preference/ debt instruments of other entities. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by 

the management. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional 

standards are maintained. The management decides, after discussions with the Group’s external valuers, which 

valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case. 

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are 

required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management 

verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation 

to contracts and other relevant documents. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of 

the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained 

above, This note summarises the accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given 
in the relevant notes. 

e Disclosures for significant estimates and assumptions (Note 3) 

e Disclosures for valuation methods and quantitative disclosure of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 

29) 

d) Revenue from contracts with customers and other income 

Revenue from contracts with customers 

The Group is primarily engaged in providing web services. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised 
when control of the services is transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which 
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those services and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf 

of the government. 

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from 

contracts with customers are provided in Note 3. 

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised. 

Rendering of services 

Revenue from web services is recognised based on output method i.e. pro-rata over the period of the contract as 

and when the Group satisfies performance obligations by transferring the promised services to its customers. 
Revenues from lead based services is recognised based on output method i.e. as and when leads are consumed by 

the customer or on the expiry of contract whichever is earlier. Activation revenue is amortised over the estimated 

customer relationship period. 

Advertising revenue is derived from displaying web based banner ads and sale of online advertisements 

Revenue from banner advertisement is recognised pro rata over the period of display of advertisement as per 

contract. Revenue from sale of online advertisements is recognised based on output method and the Group applies 

the practical expedient to recognize advertising revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to invoice. 

Contract balances 

 



IndiaMART Intermesh Limited 

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(Amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated) 
  

Trade receivables 

A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.¢., only the passage 

of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in 
section m) Financial instruments. 

Contract liabilities 

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received 

consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before 

the Group transfers services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised. The Group recognises contract 
liability for consideration received in respect of unsatisfied performance obligations and reports these amounts as 

deferred revenue and advances from customers in the balance sheet. The unaccrued amounts are not recognised 

as revenue till all related performance obligation are fulfilled. The Group generally receives transaction price in 

advance for contracts with customers that run up for more than one year. The transaction price received in advance 
does not have any significant financing component as the difference between the promised consideration and the 

cash selling price of the service arises for reasons other than the provision of finance. 

Other income 

Interest income 

For all financial assets measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate 

(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life 

of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset 

or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating EIR, the Group estimates the expected cash flows 

by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses. 

Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss. 

Dividends 

Dividend is recognised when the Group's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when 

shareholders approve the dividend. 

e) Property, plant and equipment 

Capital work in progress and property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the plant and equipment 

and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts 

of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately 

based on their specific useful lives. 

Capital work in progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under development as at the balance sheet 

date. 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is 

classified as capital advances and cost of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under 

capital work- in- progress. 

The Group has adopted component accounting as required under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The 

Group identifies the components separately, if it has useful life different from the respective property, plant and 

equipment, 

Based on the analysis, Group believes that it does not have any asset having useful life of its major components 

different from the property, plant and equipment, hence Group believes that there is no material impact on the 

financial statement of the Group due to component accounting. 
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Depreciation is calculated on a written down value basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives 

prescribed under Schedule II to Companies Act, 2013. The Group has used the following rates to provide 

depreciation on its Property, plant and equipment: 

  

  

  

  

        

Asset Annual rates 
Computers 63.16% 
Furniture and fittings 26.89% 
Office equipment 45.07% 

Vehicles 31.23% 
  

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon 

disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 
de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 

of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised. 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is 

classified as capital advances and cost of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under 
capital work- in- progress. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at 
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

f) Intangible assets 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any). 

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related 
expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment 
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the 

amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting 

period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits 

embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated 

as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised 
in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. 

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either 

individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine 

whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is 

made on a prospective basis 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when 

the asset is derecognised. 

Unique telephone numbers are amortised on a written down value basis at 40% annually. 

Intangibles being Software acquired by the Group are amortised on a written down value basis at 40% annually. 

Advances paid towards the acquisition of intangible assets outstanding at each balance sheet date are classified as 

capital advances and cost of assets not ready for use at the balance sheet date, are disclosed under capital work- 

in-progress. 
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g) Leases (as lessee) 

The Group’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Group assesses whether a contract 

contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to 

control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the group assesses whether: (1) the contact 

involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the 

asset through the period of the lease and (3) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset. At the date of 
commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease liability 

for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term 

leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments 

as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Leases for which the group is a lessor 

is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 

rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as 

operating leases. When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the 

sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset 

arising from the head lease. For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term 

of the relevant lease. Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the 

end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that 
they will be exercised. The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount 

of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus 

any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 

depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a 
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are 

evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may 
not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e, the higher of the fair value 

less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate 
cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is 
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. The lease liability is initially measured 

at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the 

interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the 

country of domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related 

right of use asset if the Group changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination 

option. Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments 
have been classified as financing cash flows. 

Finance leases were capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased 

property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments were apportioned 
between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the 
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges were recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit or 
loss. 

A ROU asset was depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there was no reasonable certainty that 
the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset was depreciated over the shorter of the 

estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. 

h) Investment in associates 

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to 
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investce but is not control or joint control over 
those policies. 

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using 
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment, or, a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale, 

in which case it is accounted for in accordance with Ind AS 105. 
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Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated balance sheet at 

cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income 

of the associate. Distributions received from an associate reduce the carrying amount of the investment. When the 
Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes any long- 

term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues 

recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has 
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. 

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from the date on which the investee 
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment 

over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as 
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment. 

After application of the equity method of accounting, the Group determines whether there is any objective 

evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the net 
investment in an associate and that event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows from the net 
investment that can be reliably estimated. If there exists such an objective evidence of impairment, then it is 
necessary to recognise impairment loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, 
the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with Ind 
AS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair 

value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying 
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with Ind AS 36 to the 
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases. 

i) Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 

indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset's 

recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) 
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, 

unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups 

of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 

In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such 
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by 

valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared 

separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast 
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and 

applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered 

by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or 

declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate 

does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which 

the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used. 

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

For properties previously revalued the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous 

revaluation surplus recognised through OCI., After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying 

amount of the asset over its remaining useful life. 

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised 

impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or 

CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change 

in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. 
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The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed 

the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised 

for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried 

at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. 

j) Taxes 

Current Income tax 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 

taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or 

substantively enacted, at the reporting date. 

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in 
other comprehensive income (loss) or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 

transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns 

with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions 
where appropriate. 

Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and 

liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a 

transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the 

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 

e Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of 

the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences 

will not reverse in the foreseeable future 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits 

and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 

will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits 

and unused tax losses can be utilised except: 

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition 

of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, 

affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 

e Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets 

are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the 
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent 

that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset 

is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 

enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other 

comprehensive income (loss) or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying 

transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax 

asscts against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation 
authority. 

Sales/ value added taxes/ Service tax/ Goods and service tax (GST) paid on acquisition of asscts or on 
incurring expenses 

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales/ value added taxes/ GST paid, except: 

¢ When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, 

in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the 
expense item, as applicable 

¢ When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included 

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or 

payables in the balance sheet. 

k) Provisions and contingent liabilities 

Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 

event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 

obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or 

all ofa provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as 

a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is 
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 

reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision 
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 

Contingent liabilities 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation. that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by 

the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a 

present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 

settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot 

be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. 

The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the consolidated financial 

statements. 

1) Retirement and other employee benefits 

Short-term obligations 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 

12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect 

of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid 

when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented under other current financial liabilities in the balance 

sheet. 

Post-employment obligations 

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation, 

other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group recognizes contribution payable to the 

provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable 

to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit 
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payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution 

already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is 

recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment 
or a cash refund. 

The Group operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees i.e. gratuity. The cost of providing benefits 

under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. 

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts 

included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts 

included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with 

a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. 
Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of: 

e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and 

e The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs 

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group 

recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and 

loss: 

® Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and 

non-routine settlements; and 

e Net interest expense or income 

Other long-term employee benefit obligations 

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as short-term 

employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects 

to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. 

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee 

benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial 

valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting period-end. Actuarial gain/loss are immediately 

taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Group presents the entire leave as a current 
liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months 

after the reporting date. 

m) Share-based payments 

Employees of the Group also receive remuneration in the form of stock options (ESOP) and stock appreciation 

rights (SAR) as a share based payment transactions under the Group’s Employee stock option plan and Employee 

stock benefit scheme. Both of these are equity settled share based payment transactions. 

The cost of equity settled transactions is determined based on fair value at the date when the grant is made using 

an appropriate valuation model. 

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity, 

over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. 

The cumulative expense recognised for equity settled transaction at each reporting date until the vesting date 

reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity 

instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the 
movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in 
employee benefits expense. 

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair 

value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of 
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the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the 

grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement, 

are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and 

lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions. 

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service 

conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated 
as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other 

performance and/or service conditions are satisfied. 

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the 
terms not been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any 
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-based payment transaction or is otherwise beneficial to 
the employee as measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the 

counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss. 

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted 
earnings per share. 

n) Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 

equity instrument of another entity. 

Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 

value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases 

or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or 

convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group 
commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

* Debt instruments at amortised cost 

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI) 

Debt instruments at amortised cost 

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, 
and 

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 

interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income 

in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally 

applies to loans to employees, trade and other receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 29. 
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Debt instruments at FVTOCI 

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the 

financial assets, and 

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI 

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at 

fair value. Pair value movements are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group 

recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and 

loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the 
equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income 
using the EIR method. 

Debt instrument at FVTPL 

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for 
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FYTOCI 

criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or 

recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). 

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in 
the statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition 

  

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial assets) is 
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when: 

a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 

b) The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay 

the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; 

and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group 

has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 

control of the asset. 

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 

arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has 

neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the 

asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. 

In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are 
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of 

the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be 
required to repay. 

Impairment of financial assets 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and 

recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure: 

a. Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, deposits, trade receivables and bank 

balance 

b. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from 

transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115 
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The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables or 
contract revenue receivables. 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it 
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial 
recognition. . 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether 

there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased 

significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased 

significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that 

there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising 

impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a 

financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that 
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract 

and al] the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. 

When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider: 

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar 

options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life 

of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining 
contractual term of the financial instrument 

¢ Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual 
terms 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in 

the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The 

balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below: 

e Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: 

ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance 
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group 
does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

e Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance 
sheet, i.e. as a liability. 

e Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, 

impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as 
‘accumulated impairment amount’ in OCI. 

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Group combines financial instruments on the basis 

of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable 

significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis. 

Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, 

loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as 

appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, 
net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, security deposits and other payables. 
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Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

Financial liabilities at fair value through Profit or Loss: 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial 

liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such 

at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as 

FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ 

losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss 
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Loans and borrowings 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 

the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as 
through the EIR amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 

are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and 

loss. This category generally applies to borrowings. 

De-recognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, 

or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the 

derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a 

currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, 

to realise the assets and settle the Liabilities simultaneously. 

o) Foreign currency transactions 

The Group’s financial statements are presented in INR which is also the Group’s functional currency. 

Transactions and balances 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at its functional currency spot rates at the 
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses an average rate 

if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot 

rates of exchange at the reporting date. 

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the 

exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss 

arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the 
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gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or 

loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively). 

p) Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity 

shareholders (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of 

equity shares outstanding during the year. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to 

the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting 

year, The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as 

bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have 

changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects 

of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

q) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with 

an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

r) Segment reporting 

Identification of segments 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 

decision maker. The Group’s activities of providing e-marketplace services for businesses is considered to be a 

single business segment. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the areas in which customers are 

based. 

Segment policies: 

The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and 

presenting the financial statements of the Group as a whole. 

s) Share Capital 

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options 

are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. 

t)} Dividends 

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the 

discretion of the Group, on or before the end of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting 

period. 

u) Recently issued accounting pronouncements 

On 23 March 2022, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through notifications, amended existing Ind AS. 
The same shall come into force from annual reporting period beginning on or after Ist April 2022. Key 

Amendments relating to the same whose financial statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are: 

- Ind AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — For items produced during testing/trail phase, clarification added 

that revenue generated out of the same shall not be recognised in Statement Of Profit and Loss and considered as 

part of cost of PPE. 

- Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets — Guidance on what constitutes cost of 

fulfilling contracts (to determine whether the contract is onerous or not) is included. 
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- Ind AS 103 — Business Combination — Reference to revised Conceptual Framework. For contingent liabilities / 

levies, clarification is added on how to apply the principles for recognition of contingent liabilities from Ind AS 

37. Recognition of contingent assets is not allowed. 

- Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments — The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the 

‘10 per cent’ test in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. 

The Company is currently evaluating the impact of these amendment on its consolidated financial statements. 

Significant accounting estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make 

judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities 

and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based 

on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and 

estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or 

liabilities in future periods. Therefore, actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and assumptions 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, 

that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 

the next financial year, are described below. The Group has based its assumptions and estimates on parameters 

available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions 

about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond 

the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

a) Taxes 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit 
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. In assessing the probability, the Group considers whether 

the entity has sufficient taxable temporary differences relating to the same taxation authority and the same taxable 

entity, which will result in taxable amounts against which the unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised 

before they expire. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets 

that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax 
planning strategies. 

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets on the deductible temporary differences since the management is of 

the view that it is probable the deferred tax assets will be recoverable using the estimated future taxable income 

based on the approved business plans and budgets. 

b) Share based payment 

The Group initially measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using a Black—Scholes— 

Merton option pricing model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share- 

based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent 

on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs 

to the valuation model including the expected life of the share option and SAR units, volatility and dividend yield 

and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share-based 

payment transactions are disclosed in Note 28. 

c) Impairment of Non- financial assets 

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, 

which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal 

calculation Is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets 
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or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based 

on a DCF model or other fair value valuation models. In DCF model, the cash flows are derived from the budget 

for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or 

significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable 

amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and 

the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. 

d) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefit) 

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using 

actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual 

developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and 

mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit 
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting 
date. 

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans 

operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with 
the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation, 

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at 
intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases, and gratuity increases are based on expected 

future inflation rates, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the 
employment market. 

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 27. 

e) Fair value measurement of financial instruments 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured 
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the 

Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where 

possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements 

include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about 
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 29 and 31 for further 
disclosures. 

f) Useful life of assets considered for depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment 

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful 

life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Group's assets are 

determined by management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed at cach financial year end. 

g) Leases 

The Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification 

of a lease requires significant judgment. The Group uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term 

(including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. 

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered 

by an option to extend the lease if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by 

an option to terminate the lease if the Group is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether 

the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a 

lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise 

the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Group revises the lease term 

if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease 

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for 

a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics. 
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. Impact of COVID-19 

The Group has taken into account all the possible impacts of COVID-19 in preparation of these consolidated 

financial statements, including but not limited to its assessment of, liquidity and going concern assumption, 

recoverable values of its financial and non-financial assets, impact on revenue and cost, impact on leases, impact 

on investment in associates and investment in other entities. The Group has carried out this assessment based on 

available internal and external sources of information upto the date of approval of these consolidated financial 

statements and believes that the impact of COVID-19 is not material to these consolidated financial statements 

and expects to recover the carrying amount of its assets. The impact of COVID-19 on the consolidated financial 

statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements 

owing to the nature and duration of COVID-19. 

 



IndiaMART InterMESH Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated) 

SA_ Property, plant and equipment 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Computers Office equipment Furniture and Motor vehicles Total Property, Capital work in 

fixtures plant and progress 

equipment (Refer Note 

below) 

Gross carrying amount 

As at 1 April 2020 127.87 52.63 5.75 3.80 190.05 1.77 

Additions for the year Ol 0.23 - - 0.34 - 

Adjustment for loss of control in Subsidiary (3.81) (0.24) (0.03) - (4.08) - 

Disposals for the year CLL.1S) (3.53) (1.69) - (16.37) : 

As at 31 March 2021 113,02 49,09 4.03 3.80 169.94 1.77 

Additions for the year 20.28 0.14 - - 20.42 - 

Disposals for the year (17.72) (0.55) : (0.02) (18.29) * 

As at 31 March 2022 115.58 48.68 4.03 3.78 172.07 L.77 

Accumulated depreciation 

As at 1 April 2020 101.07 31.74 3.45 2.03 138.29 - 

Charge for the year 16.25 930 0.52 0.56 26.63 - 

Adjustment for loss of control in Subsidiary (2.53) (0.16) (O01) - (2.70) - 

Disposals during the year (11.00) (2.59) (1.00) - (14.59) - 

As at 31 March 2021 103.79 38.29 2.96 2,59 147.63 - 

Charge for the year 631 487 6.30 0.38 11.86. - 

Disposals during the year (17.59) (0.43) - (0.02) (18.04) : 

As at31 March 2022 92.51 42.73 3.26 2.95 141.45 a 

Net book value 

Asat 1 April 2020 26.80 20,89 2.30 1.77 51.76 1.77 

As at 31 March 2021 9.23 10,80 1.07 1.21 22.31 1.77 

As at 31 Mareh 2022 23.07 5.95 0.77 0.83 30.62 1.77 
  

Note: 

|. Capital work in progress represents the amount incurred on construction of boundary wall for leasehold land (refer note 5B for details related to leasehold land) 
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5B Right-of-use asset 

Leasehold land Buildings Total 

(Refer Note 1 below) 
  

Gross carrying amount 

  

  

  

As at 1 April 2020 37.12 929.83 966.95 

Additions for the year - 26.82 26.82 

Disposals for the year - (122.10) (122.10) 

As at 31 March 2021 37.12 $34.55 871.67 

Additions for the year - 20.25 20.25 

Disposals for the year - (20.20) (20.20) 

As at 31 March 2022 37,12 834.60 871.72 
  

Accumulated depreciation 

  

  

  

As at 1 April 2020 1.84 165.40 167.24 

Depreciation for the year 0,46 131,50 131.96 

Disposals for the year - (53.18) (53.18) 

As at 31 March 2021 2.30 243.72 246.02 

Depreciation for the year 0.46 106.00 106.46 

Disposals for the year - (9.19) (9.19) 

As at 31 March 2022 2.76 340.53 343.29 
  

Net book value 
  

  

  

As at I April 2020 35.28 764.43 799.71 

As at 31 March 2021 34,82 §90.83 625.65 

As at 31 March 2022 34.36 494,07 528.43 
  

1. As per the terms of the lease arrangement, the Company was required to complete the construction of building within a defined time from the date of 

handing over the possession. The Company had obtained extension for construction of building on the leasehold land till 5 July 2021 and is in the process of 

obtaining further extension. 

2. The Company incurred INR 3.68 Million for the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: INR 13.70 Million) respectively, towards expenses relating 

to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. 

The following table presents a maturity analysis of expected undiscounted cash flows for lease liabilities as at year end: 

  

  

  

  

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 

Within one vear 131.90 132.22 

Within one = two years 134.05 130.34 

Within two - three years 122.47 130.63 

Within three - five years 224 40 229.82 

Above five years 122.01 238.29 

Total lease payments 734.83 861.30 

The reconciliation of lease liabilities is as follows: 
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 

Opening balance 634.24 765,10 

Additions 19.33 26.44 

Amounts recognized in statement of profit and loss as interest expense 54,02 66.63 

Payment of lease liabilities (124.85) (122.05) 

Derecognition (12.78) (78.95) 

Liabilities no longer required written back (7.16) (22.93) 
  

Balance as at year end (Refer Note 15) 562.80 634.24 
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6 Intangible assets Unique telephone 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Software Total 
numbers 

Gross carrying amount 

Asat 1 April 2020 15.14 4.70 19.84 
Adjustment for loss of control in Subsidiary (0.09) - (0.09) 
As at 31 March 2021 15.05 4.70 19.75 

Additions 0.02 - 0.02 
As at 31 March 2022 15.07 4.70 19.77 

Accumulated depreciation 

As at 1 April 2020 10.91 4.10 15.01 
Amortisation for the year 1.82 0.24 2.06 
Adjustment for loss of control in Subsidiary (0.03) - (0.03) 
As at 31 March 2021 12.70 4.34 17.04 

Amortisation for the year 0.99 0.15 1.14 
As at 31 March 2022 13.69 4.49 18.18 

As at 1 April 2020 4.23 0.60 4.83 
As at 31 March 2021 2.35 0.36 2.71 

  

As at 31 March 2022 1.38 0.21 1,59 
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7 Investment in associates- Unquoted 

  

  

As at Asat 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
(Accounted under equity method) No. of units Amount No. of units Amount 

Fully paid up - at cost 

Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 100 each (at premium of INR 52,217.90 each) 

in Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited (Refer Note 1 below) 5,954 311.50 5,954 311.50 

Equity shares of INR 10 each (at premium of INR 52,307.90 each) in Simply Vyapar Apps 

Private Limited 10 0.52 10 0.52 
Add: Investment made during the year (Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 100 each and - 

premium of INR 2,90,261 each) (Refer Note | below) 1.809 529.26 ° = 

Add: Investment made during the year (Equity shares of INR 10 each and premium of INR 2,03,242 
444 90.24 “ ss 

each) (Refer Note | below) 

Less: Share of loss of associate (139.91) (42.08) 

Equity shares of INR 10 each in Ten Times Online Private Limited 0.93 0.93 

Less: Share of loss of associate (0.93) (0.93) 

Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 10 each (at premium of INR 7,467 each) in 12-846 96.05 - . 
Truckhall Private Limited (Refer Note 2 below) om 

Equity shares of INR 10 each (at premium of INR 7,467 each) in Truckhall Private Limited 1,879 14.05 - i 

Less: Share of loss of associate (9.12) - 

Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 10 each (at premium of INR 43,446 each) in Oe 177.65 . . 
Shipway Technology Private Limited (Refer Note 2 below) ' 

Equity shares of INR 10 each (at premium of INR 43,446 each) in Shipway Technology Private 100 445 . . 

Limited 7 
Less: Share of loss of associate (6.22) x 

Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 10 each (at premium of [NR 60,311 each) in 2.604 16250 
Agillos E-Commerce Private Limited (Refer Note 2 below) mm 7 eg 

Equity shares of INR 10 each (at premium of INR 43,497 each) in Agillos E-Commerce Private 334) 97.50 

Limited = - - 

Less: Share of loss of associate (5.11) - 

Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of INR 10 each (at premium of INR 27,314 each) in 4784 aoe . . 

Edgewise Technologies Private Limited (Refer Note 2 below) ° —s 

Equity Shares of INR 10 each (at premium of INR 27,314 each) in Edgewise Technologies 100 on . . 

Private Limited (Refer Note 2 below) ° 

Less: Share of loss of associate (0.04) - 

Equity shares of INR 10 each (at premium of INR 1,274.15 each) n IB Monotaro Private 

Limited (Refer Note 2 below) 811,250 1,041.77 . ° 
Less: Share of loss of associate (4.17) # 

2,490.27 269.94 
Notes: 

1. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has further invested INR 615.50 Million in Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited therby increasing the ownership to 27 00% on fully converted and 

diluted basis . 

2. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has made investments in Truckhall Private Limited, Shipway Technology Private Limited , Agillos E-Commerce Private Limited, Edgewise 

Technologies Private Limited and IB Monotaro Private Limited. Considering the percentage of ownership and board representation rights of the group, these investments were classified as associates. 
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8 Financial assets 

     

  

  

  

As at Asat 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
i) Investments 

Non-current 

a) Investment in other entities at FVTPL 1,719.05 99.99 
ETC SS 

Current 

Investment in mutual funds at FVTPL 15,744.84 21,703.80 

Investment in bonds and debentures at FVTPL 6,832.57 470.56 

Invesments in Investment Trust- Quoted (measured at FVTPL) 327.63 - 

Invesments in Alternative investment funds at FVTPL 102.61 : 

23,007.65 22,174.36 

As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

a) Non-current investments No. of units Amount No. of units Amount 

Investment in others entities 

Unquoted (measured at FVTPL) 

Instant Procurement Services Private Limited 

Equity shares held of INR 10 cach in Instant Procurement Services Private Limited 5,500 - 5,500 - 

0.001% Optionally convertible redeemable preference share of INR 10 each 12,446 = 12,446 - 

6.001% Compulsorily convertible preference share of INR 10 each 3,764 w 3,764 3 

Mobisy Technologies Private Limited 

Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR | each (at premium of INR 776 each) 128,593 99.92 128,593 99.92 

Equity shares of INR | each (at premium of INR 776 each) 100 0.07 100 0.07 

Add : Investment in Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 837 each during the year (Refer 119,474 100.00. - - 

note 2 below) 

Add : Investment in Equity shares of INR 1 each (at premium of INR 837 each) during the year (Refer 17,750 14.86 - - 

nate 2 below) 

Fair value gain recognised through profit and loss during the year 172 a 

Legistify Services Private Limited 

Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 10 each (at premium of INR 5,132.68 each) 1,146 5.89 - - 

Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 10 each (at premium of INR 4,104.14 each} 1,580 6.50 - - 

Equity shares of INR 10 each (at premium of INR 5,132.68 each) 160 OSI - - 

Compulsory convertible debentures of INR 1000 each (Refer note 3 below) 75,000 75,00 - . 

Mynd Solutions Private Limited 

Equity shares of INR 10 each (at premium of INR 87.2! each) (Refer Note 4 below) 3,336,489 324.34 - - 

Zimyo Consulting Private Limited 

‘Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 10 each (at premium of INR 86,306 ,32/- each) 1,870 161.41 - - 
(Refer Note 5 below) 

Equity shares of INR 10 each (at premium of INR 86,306.32/- each) (Refer Note 5 below) 100 8.63 - - 

Fleetx Technologies Private Limited 

Compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 10 each (at premium of INR 67,420/- each) (Refer 10,323 696.08, - - 

Note 6 below) 

Equity shares of INR 10 each (at premium of INR 57,315/- each) (Refer Note 6 below) 3,805 218.12 - - 

1,719.05 99.99 

Total non-current investments 99.99 

  

Notes: 

1. The Group has invested in convertible preference shares of companies. Based on the terms, these have been classified as financial instrument in the nature of financial asscts to be measured at fair value 
through profit-and-loss. 

2. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has further invested INR 114.86 Millon in Mobisy Technologies Private Limited thereby increasing the equity ownership to 15.98% an fully converted 

and diluted basis, This investment has continued to be classified as “Investment at FVTPL” as per Ind-AS 109. 

3. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group acquired 11.01% equity ownership on fully converted and diluted basis in Legistify Services Private Limited at the aggregate consideration of INR 87 90 

Million, out of which 75 Million has been invested in Compulsory Convertibe Debentures, This investment has been classified as “Investment at FV TPL” as per Ind-AS 109. 

  

4. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has acquired 7.70% equity ownership on fully converted and diluted basis in Mynd Solutions Private Limited at the aggregate consideration of INR 
324.34 Million. This investment has been classified as “Investment at FV TPL” as per Ind-AS 109 

5, During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has acquired 10.00% interest on fully converted and diluted basis in Zimyo consulting Private Limited at the aggregate consideration of INR 170.04 
Million. This investment has been classified as “Investment at FVTPL” as per Ind-AS 109 

6. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has acquired 16.33% interest on fully converted and diluted basis in Fleetx Technologies Private Limited at the aggregate consideration of INR 
914.20 Million. This investment has been classified as “Investment at FVTPL™ as per Ind-AS 109, 

 



IndiaMART InterMESH Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated) 

b) Current investments 

  

As at Asat 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Investment in mutual funds - Quoted (measured at FVTPL) No. of units Amount No. of units Amount 

Aditya Birla Sunlife Short-Term Fund-Growth Regular Plan - - 2,599,874 95.06 

Aditya Birla Sunlife Short-Term Fund-Growth-Direct Plan 5,765,040 233.71 21,181,794 814.54 

Aditya Birla Sunlife Corporate Bond Fund - Growth-Regular Plan 6,508,526 587.00 6,508,526 559.11 

Aditya Birla Sun Life Corporate Bond Fund-Growth-Direct Plan 10,264,505 936.18 4,570,414 396.40 

Aditya Birla Sun Life Money Manager Fund - Direct - - 3,498,589 1,004.69 

Aditya Birla Sun Life Savings Fund - Direct Growth - - 2,764,954 1,180.18 
Aditya Birla sun life Banking PSU & Debt Fund-Direct - - - 8 

Aditya Birla sun Life Overnight fund-Direct Growth 369,605 424.93 - - 

Axis Ultra Short Term Fund - Direct Growth s = 41,966,039 502.05 
Axis Banking & PSU Debt Fund-Direct-Growth = - - # 

Bharat Bond ETF April-2023 400,000 467.94 400,000 446.50 

Bharat Bond ETF April-2025 379,992 411.48 149,992 153.71 

Edelweiss Arbitrage Fund Direct- Growth 43,664,568 719.74 

Edelweiss NIFTY PSU Bond Plus SDL Index F 2026 Direct Growth 47,470,047 509.92 a - 

HDFC Short Term Debt Fund-Direct Growth Plan 5,205,920 136.49 17,712,429 441.87 

HDFC Short Term Debt Fund - Regular Plan 693,662 17.82 8,380,984 205.90 

HDFC Low Duration Fund -Regular Plan-Growth - - 3,797,410 170.92 

HDFC Low Duration Fund - Direct Plan-Growth 24,968,530 1,243.14 12,035,204 572.57 

HDFC Money Market Fund - Direct Growth 257,730 1,199.68 226,818 1,014.77 

HDFC Ultra Short Term Fund - Direct Growth 100,961,709 1,253.22 100,961,709 1,205.42 

ICICI Prudential Savings Fund- Direct Plan-Growth 3,860,607 1,689.84 2,583,184 1,084.13 

ICICI Prudential Short-Term Fund - Direct 14,101,249 719.80 20,802,151 1,011.38 

ICICI Prudential Short-Term Fund - Regular 393,503 18.80 3,606,276 165.40 

ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund - Direct Growth - - 3,129,563 924.09 

ICICI Prudential Equity Arbitrage Fund-Direct Growth 37,337,769 1,093.64 - - 

IDFC Low Duration Fund-Growth- Direct Plan 15,216,251 484.79 36,439,105 1AL7.14 

IDFC Bond Fund - Short-Term Plan- Direct Growth Plan 7,006,559 343.30 8,167,105 382.73 

IDFC Banking & PSU Debt Fund - Direct - Growth - - 34,010,628 664.58 

IDFC Corporate Bond Fund - Direct - Growth Plan - - 7,922,353 120.96 

IDFC Ultra Short Term Fund - Direet-Growth Plan - 36,591,465 438.04 

Kotak Corporate Band Fund - Direct Growth Plan 198.665 622.39 328,929 981.73 

Kotak Money Market Fund - Direct Growth - - 384,544 1,339.67 

Kotak Savings Fund - Direct Growth - - 28,948,565 1,004.02 

Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund-Direct Growth 42,749,473 1,353.83 - 

L&T Short term bond fund-Direct Growth Plan = - 37,122,589 803.71 

L&T Short-Term Bond Fund - Regular Growth - - 20,066,239 418.18 

Nippon India Floating Rate Fund Direct Growth 26,960,879 1,017.62 - - 

SBI Corporate Bond Fund - Direct - Growth Plan = eS 7,021,759 85.77 

SBI Magnum Ultra Short Duration Fund - Direct Growth = 212,720 1,003 82 

SBI ETF Nifty 50 - Direct 1,450,000 259.58 = - 

SBI Savings Fund - Direct Growth - - 34,943,576 1,194.92 

SBI Liquid Fund- Direct - Growth Plan - - 62,030 199.84 

Total 15,744.84 21,703.80 

Investmeat in bonds and dehentures- Quoted (measured at FVTPL) 

Axis Bank Perpetual Bond 150 161.08. = - 

Bajaj Finance bond 200 201.02 - # 

Canara Bank perpetual bond 20 202.46 - - 

Export Import Bank Of India Bond 200 200.14 - - 

HDFC bank Perpetual Bond 400 432.94 350 381.87 

HDFC 2623 Coupon Bond 650 661.72 - - 

ICICI Bank Perpetual Bond - - 80 88 69 

India Infradebt fund NCD 100 100,72 es - 

IRFC Perpetual Bond 250 255:97 - e 

LIC Housing Finance Bond 500 515.77 - - 

NABARD Bond 1,150 1159.17 - - 

Piramal Enterprise Debentures (Market linked) 180 187.79 - - 

PNB perpetual Bond 10 101.85 - : 

Power Grid Corporation of India Limited Bond 35 75.14 - - 

REC Bond 595 643.83 - - 

SBI Perpetual Bond 50 515.16 - - 

Shriram Transport Debentures (Market linked) 100 107.81 - - 

SBI Coupon Bond 500 508.15 - - 

SIDBI Bond 650 650,74 i. - 

Union Bank Perpetual Bond 15 (SL.11 - - 

Total 6,832.57 470.56 

Invesments in Investment Trust- Quoted (measured at FVTPL} 

Powergrid Infrastructure InviT 2.446.824 327.63 - - 

Jnvesments in Alternative investment funds- Quoted (measured at FVTPL) 

ICICI Prudential Long Short Fund — Series I 999,950 102.61 - - 

Total current investments 23,007.65 22,174.36 

Aggregate book value of quoted investments 23,007.65 22,174.36 

Aggregate market value of quoted investments 23,007.65 22,174.36 

Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 1,719.05 99,99 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated) 

c) Loans (measured at amartised cost) 

(i) Loans 

Non-current (unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise) 

Loans to employees** 

Current (unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise) 

Inter-corporate deposits* 

-HDFC Limited 

-LIC Housing Finance Limited 

Loans to employees ** 

Total loans 

Notes: 

*Inter-corporate deposits placed with financial institutions yield fixed interest rate 

**Represent interest free loans to employees, which are recoverable in maximum 24 monthly instalments. 

d) Others (measured at amortised cost) 

Non-current (unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise) 

Security deposits 

Total 

Current (unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise) 

Security deposits 

Amount recoverable from payment gateway 

Other receivables * 

Total 

Total other financial assets 

Notes: 

Security deposits are non-interest bearing and are generally on term of 3 to 9 years. 

* Refer Note 33 for outstanding balances pertaining to related parties. 

9 Other assets 

Non-current (unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise) 

Prepaid expenses 

Indirect taxes recoverable 

Capital advance 

Total 

Current (Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise) 

Advances recoverable 

Indirect taxes recoverable 

Prepaid expenses 

Others 

Total 

As at 

0.82 

0.82 

417.35 41735 

31.04 

  

As at 

31 March 2022 

  

Asat 

31 March 2022 

1.23 

15.98 

23.74 
5 

  

13.17 

10.79 

21.80 

0.03 

45.79 

  

   

Asat 

31 March 2021 

501,28 

200 63 701.91 

7.34 

709.25 

711.62 

As at 

31 March 2021 

38.72 

38.72 

3.18 

73.57 

76.75, 

  

As at 

31 March 2021 

0.74 

16.72 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated) 

10 Trade receivables | 

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise 

Considered good 

Trade receivables 

Considered doubtful 

Trade Receivables credit- impaired 

Less: Loss allowance 

As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021 

13.26 12.46 

: 0.03 

: (0.03) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

                  
  

Total 13.26 12.46 

Notes: 

a) No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person 

b) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 180 days 

Less than 6 Months- 1 More than 

‘Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment / transaction 6 months year Ted years 2-3 years 3 years Total 

31 March 2022 

Undisputed, considered good 

Trade receivables 13.26 - : - - 13.26 

31 March 2021 

Undisputed, considered good 

Trade receivables 11.60 0.71 0.01 O14 : 12.46 
Considered doubtful 

Trade Receivables credit- impaired : : Z 0.03 = 0.03 
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables (0.03) 

12,46 

Cash and bank balances 

Asat Asat 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

a) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cheques on hand 207.87 142.52 
Balance with bank 

- On current accounts 287.60 258.67 
Total Cash and cash equivalents 495.47 401.19 
Note: 

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash and cash equivalents as shown above 

b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 

(1) Deposits with banks 

- remaining maturity upto twelve months 270.27 374.68 
- remaining maturity for more than twelve months - - 

270.27 374.68 

(ii) Earmarked balances with banks* 2.50 1.40 
Amount disclosed under current bank deposits 272.77 

* Earmarked balances include unclaimed/unpaid dividends of INR 0.12 (31 March 2021 

  

INR 0,06) and bank balance with Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust of INR 2.38 (31 March 2021: INR 1.34) 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(Amounts in INR million. unless otherwise stated) 

12. Share capital 

Authorised equity share capital (INR 10 per share) Number of shares Amount 

As at 1 April 2020 
Increase during the year 69.442. 460 

As at31 March 2021 99,442,460 
As at 31 March 2022 

       

Authorised 0.01% cumulative preference share capital (INR 328 per share) Number of shares Amount 

As at I April 2020 1,493,903 490.00 

Decrease during the year (1.493.900) (420.00) 

As at 31 March 2021 

As at 31 March 2022 

  

      Authorised 0.01% compulsorily convertible cumulative preference share capital (INR 100 per share mber of shares Amount 

Asat 1 April 2020 1,894,254 189.43 

L804    

  

Decrease during the year 

As at 31 March 2021 

As at 31 March 2022 = E 

      

Number of shares Amount 

As at I April 2020 28,877,247 288.77 

Equity shares issued on exercise of ESOP during the vear 66.696 0.67 

Equity shares issued on qualified institutions placement during the year 1,242,212 1242 
Equity shares issued to Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust during the year (refer note (d) below) 135.000, 135 

Equity shares issued during the earlier period to Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust and transferred to employees pursuant 42.573 043 

to SAR exercised during the period (refer nate (d) below) ‘ 

Equity shares issued during the period and held by Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust as at year end 

(refer note (d) below) (47.434) (0.48) 

As at 31 March 2021    
Equity shares issued on exercise of ESOP during the year 27.846 028 
Equity shares issued to Indiamart Emplovee Benefit Trust during the vear (refer note (d) below) 173.000, 1.73 

Equity shares issued during the earlier period to Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust and transferred to employees pursuant to 
SAR exercised during the period (refer note (d) below) 

Equity shares issued during the year and held by Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust as at year end (11,583) (0.12) 

(refer note (d) below) ‘i 

As at 31 March 2022 

47,434 O4B 

  

2,990 305,53 

Notes: 

1 During the previous vear ended 31 March 2021. the Company had raised monev by the way of Qualified Institutions Placemem (’QIP’) and alloted 1.242.212 equity shares of face value INR 10 each to the eligible 

qualified institutional buyers (QIB) at a price of INR 8.615 per equity share (including a premium of INR 8,605 per equity share) aggregating to INR 10,701.66 Millions on 22 February 2021. The issue was made in 
accordance SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended. 
Expenses incurred in relation to QIP amounting to INR 189,67 Millions has been adjusted from Securities Premium Account which resulted into the QIP’s net proceeds of INR 10,311.99 millions 
Out of these proceeds. the company has utilised till 31 March. 2022 INR 3,954.17 Millions (31 March. 2021 : Nil) towards purposes specified in the placement document from the date of QIP, The balance amount of 
QIP’s net proceeds remain invested in liquid instruments. Out of the amount utilised during the vear INR 773.45 Million has been utilised through Tradezeal Online Private limited, the wholly owned subsidiary of the 

company, details of the same are given below :- 

  

  

Investment made through Tradezeal Online Private Limited 41 \5 S05) aa 

Truckhall Private Limited 110,10 . 

Shipway Technology Private Limited 182.00 % 

Legistify Services Private Limited 87.90 - 

Agillos E-Commerce Private Limited 260.00 

Edvewise Technologies Private Limited 133.45 - 

Total 773.45 - 
  

Other than as disclosed above. no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Group and its associates to or in any other 

person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the 

Group and its associates (Ultimate Beneficiaries) The Group and its associates have not received any funds from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding thal the Group and its associates shall whether 

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Group and ils associates (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate 

beneficiaries 

Terms rights attached to equity shares: 

1) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per share. 
2) In event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be enlitled to receive remaining assets of the Company. after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to 

the number of equity shares held by the shareholders 

2 
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b) Details of shareholders holding more than 3% equity shares in the Company 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 

As at 

31 March 2022 

ber ° Holding 

  

As at 

31 March 2021 
mber % Holding 

  

  

Dinesh Agarwal 8,630,747 28.24% 8,630,747 28.42% 

Brijesh Agrawal 5,848,544 19.14% 5,848,544 19.26% 

Details of sharcholding of promoters 
Asat As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Promoters Number % Holding Number % Holding % Change during 
the year 

Dinesh Chandra Agarwal 8,630,747 28.24 8,630,747 28.42 (0.18) 

Brijesh Kumar Agrawal 5.848.344 19.14 S.848.544 19.26 (O12) 

Promoter Group 
Cheina Agarwal 155,200 O51 155,200 OSL - 

Pankaj Aganval 151.000 0.49 151,000 0.50 (0.01) 

Anand Kumar Agrawal 70,000 0.23 70,000 0.23 2 

Meena Agarwal 69.800 0,23 69.800 4.23 - 

Dinesh Chandra Agarwal (HUF) 60,000 0.20 60,000 0.20 - 
Naresh Chandra Agrawal 40.200 013 40.200 013 : 
Prakash Chandra Agrawal 40,200 O13 40,200 O13 ¥ 

Gunjan Agarwal 20.000, 0.07 20,000 0.07 - 

Keshar Devi Agrawal 19.800 0.06 19.800 0,07 (0.01) 

Vijay Jalan 1o,000 0.03 10,000 0.03 5 

Naresh Chandra Agrawal (HUF) 9.000 0.03 9,000 0.03 - 

Anand Kumar Agrawal (HUF) 6.000, 0.02 6.000 0.02 = 

Prakash Chandra Agrawal (HUF) 6.000, 0.02 6.000 0.02 - 

Haminvasia Business Trust 200 0.00 200 o.oo * 

Haminvasia Family Trust 200 0.00 200, 0.00 - 

Nanpara Business Trust 100 0.00 100 0.00 - 

‘Nanpara Family Trust 100 0.00 100 0.00 - 

Total 

c) Shares reserved for issue under options 

  

15,137,091 49.8: 
     
    

Information relating to the Company's share based payment plans, including details of options and SAR units issued, exercised and lapsed during the financial vear. Options and SAR units outstanding at the end of the 

reporting period. is set out in note 28 

      

d) Shares held by Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust against employees share based payment plans (face value: INR 10 each) 

Asat As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Number Amount Number Amount 

Opening balance 47,434 O48 42,573 0.43 

Purchased during the year 173,000 1.73 135,000 1.35 

Transfer to employees pursuant to SAR/ESOP exercised 208,850 (2.09) (130,139) 
Closing balance 0.12 47,434 

13. Other equity 

Asat Asat 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Securities premium 15,383.23 15.310.77 

General reserve 845 B45 

Emplovee share based payment reserve 130.16 97.38 

Retained eamings 2,913.16 389.08 

Total other equity 18,435.00 15,805.68 

Nature and purpose of reserves and surplus: 

a Securities premium: The Securities premium account is used to record the premium on issue of shares and is wilised in accordance with the provisions ef the Compamies Act 2013 

b) General reserve: The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. as the same is created by transfer from one component of equity to another. 

c} Employee share based payment reserve: The Employee share based payment reserve is used 10 recognise the compensation related to share based awards issued to employees under Company's Share based payment 

scheme. 

d 

by the parent company. 

Capital reserve: The Group recognises profit or loss on purchase. sale. issue or cancellation of the Group's own equily instruments to capital reserve. The capital reserve pertains to acquisition of non-contralling interest 

e) Retained earnings: Retained earings represent the amount of accumulated earnings of the Group, and re-measurement gains/losses on defined benefit plans. 
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14 Trade payables 
As at As at 

31. March 202231 March 2021 

Payable to micro, small and medium enterprises - * 
Other trade payables 
~ ulstanding dues to related parties (Refer Note 33) 

- outstanding dues to others 
= Accrued expenses 
Total 

   
Less than] yy ca | ag years | Mote than 

for follow from due date of [transaction 1 year s 2 3 yours 
31 March 2022 

MSI 

Others 

  

* MSME as per the aucro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

  

S$ Lease and other financial liabilities 

Asat As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

& Lease liabilities (Refer Note 5B) 

Current 100.41 108.57 

67 

    

Non-current 

    

(b) Other finanei: 

Current 
Payable to employees 192.95, 195.94 

Security deposits + ond 
‘Other payable 10.05 5.32 
Total 203.00 201.40 

“Includes unclaimed/Unpaid dividend of INR. 12. (3) March 2021- INR 0.06) cemaining te be paid to shareholders       

          

  

  

16 Provisions 

As at As at 

31 March 202231 March 2021 
Non-current 

Provision for employee benefits* 
Provision for gratuity 
Provision for leave encashment 

Total 

Current 
Provision for employee benefits* 

Provision for gratuity 

Provision for leave encashment 

Provision-others** 
Total 

* Refer Note 27 

*® Contingency proviston towards indirect taxes. There is no change in this provision during the year ended 341 March 2022 

17 Contract and ather liabilities 

As at Asat 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Contract liabilities* 
TS 

Non-current 
Deferred revenue 3316.20 2584.75 

3,316.21 2,584.75 

Current 

Deferred revenue 5,110.80 4198.18 

Advanees from customers 643.38 478.08 
54.18 4,676.26 

Total 9,070.38 7,261.01 

Other liabilities- current 

Statutory dues 

Tax deducted al source payable 32.89 37.66 
GST payable 250.20 181.19 

Others 74 497 
Total 2900.93 223,82 

* Contract liabilities include consideration received in advance to render web services in future periods, Refer Note 33 for outstanding balanees pertaining to related parties ee 

18 Income tax assets and liabilities 
Asat As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Income tax assets (net af provisions) 

Non current 

  

Income tax assets 1849.80) 

Less: Provision for income tax (1615.84) 

235.96 

Current 

Income tax assets 

  

Total 233.96 
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19 Revenue from operations 

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contracts with customers 

Sale of services 

For the year ended 
31 March 2022 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Income from web services 7,397.02 6,595.83 
Advertisement and marketing services 137.83 99.79 

Total 7,534.85 6,695.62 

Transaction price allocated 1o the remaining performance obligations 

The following table includes revenue expected to be recognised in the future related to performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) at the reporting date 

As at As at 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Less than More than Less than More than 
12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months 

Web services 3,733.75 3,306.73 4,075.46 2,583.88 

Advertisement and marketing services 20.43 9.47 0.80 O87 

§,754.18 3,316.20 4,676.26 2,584.75 

No single customer represents 10% or more of the Company's total revenue during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 

As at As at 
Contract liabilities 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

  

  

  

  

Web services 9,040.48 7,259.34 

Advertisement and marketing services 29.90 1.67 

9,070.38 7,261.01 

Non-current 3,316.20 2,584.75 
Current 5,754.18 4,676.26 

9,070.38 7,261.01 

ificant changes in the contract liability balances during the year are as follows: 

  

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
  

  

Opening balance at the beginning of the year 7,261.01 6,852.79 

Less: Revenue recognised from contract liability balance at the beginning of the year (4,254.99) (3,908.12) 

Add: Amount received from customers during the year 9,344.22 FLL S89 

Less: Revenue recognised from amounts received during the year (3,279.86) (2,787.50) 

Adjustment for dilution of stake in subsidiary = (8.05) 

Closing balance at the end of the year 9,070,383 7,261.01 

20 Other income 

Gain on investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 

  

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
  

  

-Fair value gain on measurement and come from sale of mutual funds, bonds, debentures, units of 1,030.24 793.52, 

alternative investment fund and investment trust 
-Fair value gain on measurement of Investment in other entities 12 - 

Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost 
- on bank deposits 15.56 29.69 

- on corporate deposits and loans 39.86 207 
- on security deposits 2.85 4.87 

Other interest income 10.11 1.08 

Dividend Income 2.59 2 
Gain on de-recognition of Right-of-use assets 1.76 10.02 

Provisions and liabilities no longer required written back 7.30 22.93 
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1.56 1.66 

Miscellancous income 2.39 - 
1,121.94 865.84 Total 

N Employee benefits expense 

  

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

For the year ended 
31 March 2021 

  

  

Salaries, allowance and bonus 2,470.45 1Ol4 4s 
Gratuity expense (Refer Note 27) 62.45 51772 

Leave encashment expense (Refer Note 27) 677 $37 

Contribution to provident and other funds 27.50 17.28 

Employee share based payment expense (Refer Note 28) 102.73 58.83 

Staff welfare expenses 5,62 4.48 

Total 2,675.52 2,052.13, 

22 Finance costs 

Interest cost of lease liabilities 
Total 

  

For the year ended 
31 March 2022 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
  

54.02 66,63   
$4.02 66.63 
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23 Depreciation and amortization expense 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note SA) 

Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (Refer Note SB) 

Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 6) 

Total 

ms = Other expenses 

Content development expenses 

Buyer engagement expenses 

Customer support expenses 

Outsourced sales cost 
Internet and other online expenses 
Rates and taxes 
Outsourced support cost 

Advertisement expenses 

Power and fuel 
Repair and maintenance 

- Plant and machinery 

- Others 
Travelling and conveyance 

Recruttment and training expenses 

Legal and professional fees 

Directors’ sitting fees 

Auditor's remuneration 
Insurance expenses 

Loss on change of control of a subsidiary converted into an associate 

Collection charges 

Corporate social responsibility activities expenses 

Rent 
Miscellaneous expenses 

Total 

n h Earnings per share (EPS) 

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the earnings for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

  

  

11.86 26.63 
106.46 131.96 

Ll4 2.06 

119.46 160,65 
  

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
  

  

  

164.38 108.23 

143.45 172.95 

159.77 158 46 

737.75 $22.32 

298.67 194.57 

10.42 4.90 

12.53 1.72 

9.39 7.98 
772 6.86 

3.43 2.32 

27.27 

10.46 

12.26 
54.81 
3.55 
5.76 

31.21 

44.79 

36.37 
3.68 

3.20 i 

1,780.87 1,361.92 
  

Diluted EPS are calculated by dividing the earnings for the year attributable to the equity holders of the parent company by weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number 

of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares. The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations 

Basic 

Net profit as per the statement of profit and loss for computation of EPS (A) 

Weighted average number of equity shares used in calculating basic EPS (B) 

Basic earnings per equity share (A/B) 

Diluted 

Weighted average number of equity shares used mm calculating basic EPS 

Potential equity shares 

Total no. of shares outstanding (including dilution) (C) 

Diluted earnings per equity share (A/C) 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
  

  

2,976.18 2,797.74 

30,424,200 29,098,875 

97.82 96.18 

30.424.200 29,098,875 
309,651 482.591 

30.733.851 29,581,466 

96.84 94.58 

There are potential equity shares for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 in the form of share based awards granted to employees which haye been considered in the calculation of diluted earnings per share 

For the year ended 31 March 2022 | 24.722 (31 March 2021 Nil) SAR units of employees share based awards were excluded from the calculation of diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares as their effect would have been antie 
dilutive 
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26 Income tax 

The major components of income tax expense are 

a) Income tax expense recognised in Statement of profit and loss 

oc ) 

Particulars 

Current tax expense 

Current tax for the year 

Deferred tax expense/(benefit) 

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 

Tax expense related to change in tax rate/laws* 

- Deferred tax 

Total income tax expense 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

For the year ended 

31 Mareh 2021   

  
  

  

  

  

980.47 639.25 

980.47 639.25 

(52,22) 347.32 

(52.22) 347.32 

= 109.22 
- 109.22 

928.25 1,095.79 
  

* Pursuant to a tax law amendment (enacted on 28 March 2021), the tax amortizable goodwill became non tax amortizable from financial year ending 31 March 2021, The amended law 

states that goodwill of a business or profession will not be considered as a depreciable asset and no depreciation on goodwill will be allowed from 1 April 2020. Accordingly, the deferred tax 

asset on Goodwill was derecognized by the Company as Goodwill ceased to be tax amortizable pursuant to amendments in the Finance Act, 2021, during the previous year ended 31 March 

2021. 

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income/(loss) (OCI) 

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year 

Particulars 

Net loss on remeasurements of defined benefit plans 

c) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by statutory income tax rate. 

Particulars 

Profit before tax 

Accounting profit before income tax 

Tax expense at the statutory income tax rate @25.17% 

Adjustments in respect of differences taxed at lower tax rates 

Adjustment in respect of change in carrying amount of investment in subsidiaries 

Tax expense related to change in tax rate/laws 

Non-deductible expenses and Non taxable income for tax purposes: 

Employee stock option expenses of subsidiary 

Dividend income received 

Income non-taxable for tax purposes 

Other non-deductible expenses and non-taxable income 

Temporary differences for which no deferred tax was recognised 

Tax expense at the effective income tax rate of 23.77% 

(31 March 2021: 28.15%) 

d) Breakup of deferred tax recognised in the Balance sheet 

Particulars 

Deferred tax asset 

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 

Provision for gratuity 

Provision for compensated absences 

Investment in subsidiaries measured at fair value 

Provision of expenses, allowable in subsequent year 

Ind AS 116 - Leases impact 

Others 

Total deferred tax assets recognised (A) 

Deferred tax liabilities 
Investment in mutual finds, bonds, debentures, units of altemative investment fund and investment trust 

measured at fair value 
Investment in other entities measured at fair value 

Accelerated deduction on lease rent for tax purposes 

Others 

Total deferred tax liabilities (B) 

Net deferred tax liabilities (C) = (A) + (B) 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
  

144 (6.21)   

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
  

  

  

  

3,904.43 3,893.53 
3,904.43 3,893.53 
982.74 980.00 

(102.83) (17.62) 
11.33 10.47 

- 109,22 

6.50 
(0.20) (8.17) 
26,33 (4.66) 
6.49 0.94 
439 19.10 

928.25 1,095.79 
  

As at 

31 March 2022 

As at 

31 March 2021 
  

  

  

  

  

  

5.29 7.61 

46.95 58.02 

18.54 18.82 

39.30 39.30 

39,67 28.84 

17,30 10.93 

- 0.09 

167.05 163,61 

(316,64) (364.51) 

(1.77) 2 

(1.73) (1.76) 

(3.33) (4.54) 

(323.47) (370.81) 

(156.42) (207.20) 
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e) Breakup of deferred tax expense recognised in Statement of profit and loss and OCI 

Particulars 

Deferred tax expense/(income) relates to the following: 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

  

  

  

  

  

Provision for gratuity 11.07 (6.74) 

Provision for compensated absences 0.28 0.09 
Investment in other entities measured at fair value 1.77 0.71 
Deferred revenue - 0.56 

Tax losses - 164.19 

Unabsorbed depreciation - 27.20 

Goodwill Imapairment - 109,21 
Provision for expenses, allowable in subsequent year (10.83) 16.29 
Investment in mutual funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment fund and investment trust 
measured at fair value (47.87) 149.88 

Accelerated deduction for tax purposes (0.03) (0.02) 
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 2.32 (0.14) 

Ind AS 116 - Leases impact (0.37) (10.76) 
Others. (1.12) (0.14) 
Deferred tax expense (50.78) 450.33 

f) Reconciliation of Deferred tax liabilities (Net): 

Particulars Asat sat 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Opening balance as of 1 April (207.20) 245.70 
Tax (expense)/ benefit during the year recognised in Statement of profit and loss 52.22 (347.32) 
Tax impact related to change in tax law - (109.22) 

Tax impact during the year recognised in OCI (1.44) 6.21 
Adjustment for loss of control in Subsidiary - (2.57) 
Closing balance at the end of the year (156.42) (207.20) 

  

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets and deferred tax 

liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority, 

Particulars 

Deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised 

are attributable to the following: 

g) Detail of deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised in the balance sheet: 

As at 

31 Mareh 2022 

As at 

31 March 2021 

  

  

- tax business losses 424.43 380.82 
- unabsorbed depreciation 9.60 8.97 
- other deductible temporary differences 3.27 3.27 

437.30 393.06 
  

The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax 

liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority. 
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27 Defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefit plan 

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed statutory defined period of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each 

completed year of service. The scheme is funded with insurance company in form of qualifying insurance policy. This defined benefit plans exposes the Group to actuartal risks, such as longevity risk, 

interest rate risk and salary risk. 

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Group's obligation in respect of its gratuity plan and leave encashment ts as follows 

Gratuity - Defined benefit 

As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Present value of defined benefit obligation 336.31 289.63 

Fair value of plan assets (146.02) (57,30) 

Net liability arising from defined benefit 190.29 232.33 

Leave encashment - other long term employee benefit plan 

As at Asat 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Present value of other long term empoyee benefit 75.21 76.08 

a) Reconciliation of the net defined benefit (asset) liability and other long term employee benefit plan 

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit (asset) liability and other other long term employee benefit plan and its 

components. 

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation for Gratuity and Leave encashment 

  

Gratui 

As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Balance at the beginning of the year 289.63 223,31 

Benefits paid (14.56) (7.32) 

Adjustment for loss of control in subsidiary - (75) 
Current service cost 47.51 38.80 

Interest cost 18.63 13.73 

Actuarial (vains)/losses 

~ changes in demographic assumptions 1.07 2 (4.59) 

- changes in financial assumptions (9.22 13.76 

- experience adjustments 3.25 15.69 

Balance at the end of the year 336.31 289.63 

Leave encashment 

As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Balance at the beginning of the year 608 SS”™~™~™CSR 

Benefits paid (7.64) (7.63) 

Adjustment for loss of contre! in subsidiary - (1.78) 

Current service cost 0.30 2.60 

Interest cost 4.88 4.90 

Actuarial (gains)/losses 

- changes in demographic assumptions 0.23 (6.33) 

- changes in financial assumptions (0.70) 153 

+ experience adjustments 2.06 2.65 

Balance at the end of the year 75.21 76,08 

Movement in fair value of plan assets Gratuity 

As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Opening fair value of plan assets 57.30 12.94 

Interest income 3.69 0.81 

Actuarial (gains)/losses (0.40) 0.87 

Contributions from the employer 100.00 $0.00 
Benefits paid 14.57) (7.32) 

Closing fair value of plan assets 146.02 57.30 

  

Each year the management of the Company reviews the level of funding requried as per its risk management strategy. The Company expects to contribute to gratuity INR 52.85 millions in FY 20: 

(1 March 2021; INR 42.55 million) 

The majer categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows: 

As at Asat 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Funds managed by insurer 100.00% 100,00% 

The overall expected rate of return on assets 1s determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable ta the period over which the obligation is to be settled 
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b) Expense recognised in profit or loss 

    

  

   

Gratui 

For the year ended For the year ended 

31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021 

Current service cost 47.51 38.80 

Net interest expense 14.94 12.92 

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss 62.45 72 

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability: 

Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan assets G40 (0.87) 

Actuartal (gain)/loss on defined benefit obligation (4.90) 24.86 

‘Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income (4.50) 23.99 

Leave encashment 

For the year ended For the year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

‘Current service cost 030 2.60 

Net interest expense 488 4.90 

Actuarial (gain)/loss on other long term employee benefit plan 1.59 (2.13) 

Components of other long term employee benefit costs recognised in profit or loss 6.77 5.37 

¢) Actuarial assumptions 
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages): 

Asat As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Discount rate 6.75% 6.45% 

Expected rate of return on assets 6.75% 6.45% 

As at As at 

Attrition rate: 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Upto 4 years of Ahove 4 years of Upto 4 years of Above 4 years of 

Ages service service service service 

Upto 30 years 30% 30% 30.00% 30.00% 

Above 30 years 10% 10% 10.00% 10.00% 

Future salary growth 

Year | 12.00% 12.00% 

Year 2 12.00% 12.00% 

Year 3 and onwards 12.00% 12.00% 

Mortality table India Assured Life Moratility (2012-14) India Assured Life Moratility (2012-14) 

The Group regularly assesses these assumptions with the projected long-term plans and prevalent industry standards. 

d) Sensitivity analysis 

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the ameunts 

Gratuity 

For the year ended 31 March 2022 Increase Decrease 

Impact of change in discount rate by 0.50% (21.54) 23.96 

Impact of change in salary by 0.50% 9.14 (9,09) 

For the year ended 31 March 2021 Increase Decrease 

Impact of change in discount rate by 0.50% (19.40) 21.82 

Impact of change in salary by 0.50% 10.13 (10.37) 

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of eash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown 

¢) The table below summarises the maturity profile and duration of the gratuity liability: 

As at As at 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Within one year 23.34 2014 

Within one - three years 38.89 30.98 

Within three - five years 34.08 27.22 

Above five years 240.00 229"     
Total 336.31 
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28 Share based payment plans 

a) Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) 

‘The Company has provided various share-based payment schemes to its employees in the preceding financial years. Durmg the year ended 3] March 2022, the following schemes were in operation 

Date of grant 

Date of Board Approval 

Date Of Shareholder's approval 

Number of options approved 

Method of Settlement 

Vesting period (in months) 

The details of activity have been summarized below. 

ESOP 2016 

ESOP 2016 

July 28, 2016 

July 28, 2016 

September 23, 2015 

276,980 

Equity 

0 to 48 Months 

ESOP 2017 ESOP 2022 

June 02, 2017 Jan 10, 2022 

May 04, 2017 Jan 08, 2022 

September 23, 2015 May 07, 2018 

200,730 45,490 

Equity Equity 

0 to 48 Months. 0 to 48 Months 

  

For the year ended 

31 Mareh 2022 
For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
  

  

Number of options Weighted Average Num ber of options Weighted Average 

Exercise Price (INR) Exercise Price (INR) 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year - 19,425 200 

Exercised during the year - - 19,425 200 
Outstanding at the end of the year 

ESOP 2017* 

  

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 

Granted during the year 

Forfeited/ expired during the year 

Exercised during the year 

Outstanding at the end of the year 

Exercisable at the end of the year 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 
For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
  

Number of options Weighted Average 

Exercise Price (INR) 

13,923 200 

Nil . 

13,923. 200 

Nil - 

* 27,846 shares have been issued against the ESOP exercised under this scheme during the year after considering the impact of bonus shares 

ESOP 2022 

Number of options Weighted Average 

Exercise Price (INR) 

27,846 200 

Nil 200 

Nil 200 

13,923 200 
13,923 200 

Nil 200 

  

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 
For the year ended 

31 March 2021 
  

Number of options Weighted Average 

Exercise Price (INR) 
Number of options Weighted Average 

Exercise Price (INR) 

  

  

Outstanding at the beginning of the year - - Nil = 
Granted during the year 45,490 10 Nil * 

Forfeited’ expired during the year 440 10 Nil - 

Exereised during the year - - Nil m 

Outstanding at the end of the year 45,050 10 Nil - 

Exercisable at the end of the year Nil - Nil - 

Figures for current year ended 31 March 2022 and previous year are as follows 

As at 31 March 2022 

ESOP 2022 ESOP 2016 ESOP 2017 

Range of exercise prices 10 200 200 

Number of options outstanding 45,050 - - 

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options (in years) 4 - - 

Weighted average exercise price 10 200 200 

Weighted average share price for the options exercised during the year * 300 300 

As at 31 March 2021 
  

  

ESOP 2016 ESOP 2017 

Range of exercise prices 200 200 

Number of options outstanding - 13,293 

Weighted average remaining contractual life of options (in years) s 7 

Weighted average exercise price 200 200 

Weighted average share price for the options exercised during the year 300 300 
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Stock Options granted 

The fair value of options 1s measured using Black-Scholes valuation model. The key inputs used in the measurement of the grant date fair valuation of equity settled plans are given in the table below 

As at 31 Mareh 2022 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

ESOP 2016 ESOP 2017 

Weighted average share price 275.93 280.50 

Exercise Price 200 200 

Expected Volatility 0.00% 0.00% 

Historical Volatility 0.10% 0.10% 

Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise year) in years 7,70 7.70 

Expected dividends Nil Nil 

Average risk-free interest rate 7.20% 7.20% 

ESOP 2022* 

Weighted average share price 6662 

Exercise Price 10 

Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise year) in years 4 

* For ESOP 2022 Scheme, the stock price as on the day prior to the grant date has been considered as the fair value. 

As at 31 March 2021 

ESOP 2016 ESOP 2017 

Weighted average share price 275,93 280.50 

Exercise Price 200 200 

Expected Volatility 0.00% 0.00% 

Historical Volatility 0.10% 0.10% 

Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise year) in years 7.70 7.70 

Expected dividends. Nil Nil 

Average risk-free interest rate 7.20% 7.20% 

b) Stock appreciation rights (SAR) 

The Company has granted stock appreciation nghts to its employees. Details are as follows 

SAR 2018 SAR 2021 SAR 2022 

Date of grant October 01, 2018 August Q1, 2021 January 10, 2022 

Date of Board Approval September 22, 2018 July 19, 2021 January 08, 2022 

Date Of Shareholder’s approval May 07, 2018 May 07, 2018 May 07, 2018 

Number of units approved 800,740 8,600 68,770 

Method of Settlement Equity Equity Equity 

Vesting period (in months) 0 te 48 Months 0 to 48 Months 0 to 48 Months 

The details of activity have been summarized below 

7 For the year ended For the year ended 

SAR-2018) 31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021 

Numberof SAR — Weighted Average = ‘ z Weighted Average 

units Exercise Price (INR) NAR R OE SAR nt Exercise Price (INR) 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 427,788 500 584,592 500 

Granted during the year - Nil Ni Nil 

Lapsed during the year 11,280 500 12,448 500 

Exercised during the year 212,850 500 144,356 Nil 

Expired during the year - Nil Nil Nil 

Outstanding at the end of the year 203,658 500 427,788 500 

Exercisable at the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nal 

* 208.850 (31 March 2021 - 130,039) shares have been issued against the SAR exercised under this scheme during the year after adjusting the impact of consideration payable by employees 

SAR 2021 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 

Granted during the year 

Lapsed during the year 

Exercised during the year 

Expired during the year 

Outstanding at the end of the year 

Exercisable at the end of the year 

  

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 
  

Numberof SAR Weighted Average 
units Exercise Price (INR) Number of SAR units 

8.600 10 a 

1,350 10 x 

7,250 10 - 

Weighted Average 

Exercise Price (INR) 
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For the year ended For the year ended 

  

  

  

  

  

  

SAR 202 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Number of SAR Weighted Average . + Weighted Average 

units Exercise Price (INR) Numberee SAR wants Exercise Price (INR) 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year - 3 2 7 

Granted during the year 68,770 10 - - 

Lapsed during the year 2,420 10 2 = 

Exercised during the year - « s a 

Expired during the year - * x i 

Outstanding at the end of the year 66,350 10 - - 

Exercisable at the end of the year - - = « 

Figures for current year ended 31 March 2022 and previous year are as follows: 

For the year ended 31 March 2022 

SAR 2018 SAR 2021 SAR 2022 

Range of exercise prices 500 10 10 

Number of units outstanding 203,658 7,250 66,350 

Weighted average remaining contractual life of units (1n years) 050 3.33 3.83 

Weighted average exercise price 500 10 10 

For the year ended 31 March 2021 

SAR 2018 

Range of exercise prices 500 

Number of units outstanding 427,788 

Weighted average remaining contractual life of units (in years) 2 

Weighted average exercise price 500 

SAR units granted 

The fair value of options is measured using Black-Scholes valuation model. The key inputs used in the measurement of the grant date fair valuation of equity settled plans are given in the table below 

  

  

SAR 2018 

Weighted average share price SOT 

Exercise Price 500 

Expected Volatility 41% 

Historical Volatility 41% 

Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise year) in years. 4.00 

Expected dividends Nil 

  

  

Average risk-free interest rate 780% 

SAR 2021* SAR 2022* 

Weighted average share price 7,135 6,662 

Exercise Price 10 10 

Life of the options granted (Vesting and exercise year) in years 4 4.00 

* For SAR 2021 and SAR 2022 Scheme, the stock price as on the day prior to the grant date has been considered as the fair value. 

Effect of the employee share-based payment plans on the statement of profit & loss: 

For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

For the year ended 

31 March 2021 

  

Total Employee Compensation Cost pertaining to share-based payment plans 

Compensation Cost pertaining to equity-settled employee share-based payment plan included above 

Effect of the employee share-based payment plans on its financial position: 

102.73 

102.73 

58.83 

58.83 

Asat 

31 March 2022 

Asat 

31 March 2021 
  

Total reserve for employee share based payments outstanding as at year end 130.16 97.38 

 



IndiaMART InterMESH Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(Amounts in INR million. unless othensise stated) 

29 Fair value measurements 

a) Category wise details as to carrying value, fair value and the level of fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments are as follows: 

    

Level As at As at 

31 March 2022 + 31 March 2021 

Financial assets 

a) Measured at fair valuc through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
Investment in mutual funds (Refer Note b(iit) below) Level 1 15,744.84 21,703.80: 

- Investment in bonds (Refer Note b(v} below) Level | 470,56 

-Invesments in Investment Trust (Refer Note b(ii) below) Level | 327.63 - 

~ Invesments in Alternative investment funds (Refer Note b(iii) below) Level I 102.61 - 

- Investment in bonds & debentures (Refer Note b(v) and b(vi) below) Level 2 6,832.57 + 

- Investment in cquity/preference instruments of other entities Level 3 

(Refer Note bliv) below) See 1,719.08 99.99 
24,726.70 22,274.35 

b) Measured at amortised cost (refer note (b)(i) and (ii) below) 

~ Trade receivables 13.26 1246 

~ Cash and cash equivalents 495,47 40L.1e 
+ Loans to employees 31.86 O71 

~ Inter-corporate deposits 417.35 TOLYL 

~ Security deposits 4247 41.90 
~ Deposits with Banks 376.08 

+ Other financial assets 735 
1,616.82 

Total financial assets (a+b) 23,891.17 

Financial liabilities 

a) Measured at amortised cost (refer note (b){i) and (ii) 

= Trade payables 154.28 

~ Security deposits O14 

~ Other financial habilities 201.26 

634.24 ~ Lease liabilities 
Total financial liabilities    

x ) The following methods / assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 

i) The carrying value of deposits with Banks. Inter-corporate deposits with Financial institutions, trade receivables. loans to employees, cash and cash equivalents. trade payables. security deposits, lease liabilities 

and other financial assets and other financial liabilities measured at amortised cost approximate their fair value due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. These have been assessed basis counterparty 

credit risk. 

if) The fair valuc of non-current financial asscts and financial abilities measured are determined by discounting future cash flows using current rates of instruments with similar terms and credit risk. The current 
rates used does not reflect significam changes from the discount rates used initially, Therefore, the carrying value of these instruments measured at amortised cost approximate their fair value 

Fair value of quoted mutual funds, alternative investment funds and investment trust is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. We do not expect matenal volatility in these financial assets. 

  

    iv) Fair value of equity/preference instruments of other entities is estimated based on discounted cash flows / market multiple valuation technique using the cash flow projections, discount rate and credit risk and are 

classified as Level 3 
¥) With effect from 1 April 2021, the fair value of quoted bonds is determined using observable market's inputs and is classified as Level 2 as against earlict classification of Level 1 

vi) Fair value of the quoted bonds and debentures is determined using observable market's inputs and is classified as Level 2. 

c) Following table deseribes the valuation techniques used and key inputs thereto for the level 3 financial assets as of 31 March 2022 : 

Financial assets Valuation technique(s) Signifeant Unobservable Inter-relutionship between significant unobservable 
input range input and fair value measurement 

Investment in cquity/preference instruments of other entities 
Mobisy Technologies Private Limited, Legistify Services Private Linnted, Market multiple approach O 7xeK 3x ‘The estimated fair value of Investment in Other eatitres 
Mynd Solutions Private Limited, Zimyo consulting Private Limited and Fleetx wall Increase! (deerease) if the Market multiple 1s 

higher! ower) 

  

Technologies Private Limited 
Sensitivity 

   For the farr value of mvestment in other entities. reasonably possible changes in Market Muluple by 256 basis points at the reporting date being a significant unobservable inputs. would have the following effect 

For the year ended 
31 March 2022 

42.5% change m Market Multiple 32 48 
-2.5% change in Market Multiple (20.15) 

Following table describes the valuation techniques used and key inputs thereto for the level 3 financial assets as of 31 March 2021 : 
Financial assets Valuation Key input(s) 

technique(s) 

  

Investment in equity/preference instruments of other entities 
Mobisy Technologies Private Limited Refer Note below? i) Discount rate Refer Note below** 

ii) Growth rate for long term cash flow projections 
iii) Future cash low projections based on budgets 

* The fair valucs of financial assets included in level 3 have been determined in accordance with generally accepted valuation models based on a discounted cashflow analysis, with onc of the most significant inputs 

being the discount rate. 

** Sensitivity to changes in unobservable inputs: The fair value of the financial assets is directly proportional to the estimated future cash flow projections based on the budgets approved by the management. Change 
in significant unobservable input of discount rate by 100 bps and growth rate by 100 bps in the valuation does not have a significant impact on the carrying value of the.assets im the financial statements 

  

jon of level 3 fair value measurements 

Investment in equity/preference instruments 

of other entities 

  

For the year ended For the year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Opening balance 
00.99 ée 

Gain recognised in profit or loss 772 - 

Additions 1,611.34 99.99 

Closing balance 4,719.05 99.99 

¢) During the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021. there were no transfer duc to reclassification into and out of Level 3 fair valuc measurements 
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30 Capital management 

The Group manages its capital to ensure it will be able to continue as a going concerms while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and 
equity balance 

The capital structure of the company consists of no debts and only equity of the company. 

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements 

The Group reviews the capital structure on a regular basis. As part of this review, the Group considers the cost of capital, risks associated with each class of capital requirements 
and maintenance of adequate liquidity 

Financial risk management objectives and policies 

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s board of directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s 

risk management framework. The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and 

controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s 

activities. 

The Group's board oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk 

management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Board is assisted in its oversight role by intemal audit. Internal audit undertakes regular reviews of risk 

management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee 

i) Credit risk management 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the 

Group's cash and bank balances, trade receivables, investments in mutual fund, loans and security deposits. 

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure. 

Credit risk management considers available reasonable and supportive forward-looking information including indicators like external credit rating (as far as available), macro- 
economic information (such as regulatory changes, government directives, market interest rate). 

Trade receivables 

The Group majorly collects consideration in advance for the services to be provided to the customer. As a result, the Group is not exposed to any significant credit risk on trade 

receivables. 

Cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and invesiments in mutual funds, debentures, units of alternative investment funds and units of investment (rust. 

The company maintains its cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits, inter-corporate deposits and investment in mutual funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment 

funds and units of investment trust with reputed banks and financial institutions. The credit risk on these instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high 
credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies. 

Security deposits and loans 

The Group monitors the credit rating of the counterparties on regular basis. These instruments carry very minimal credit risk based on the financial position of parties and 
Group's historical experience of dealing with the parties. 

ii) Liquidity risk management 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another 

financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under 

both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Groups’s reputation. 

Uhimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the 

management of the Group's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate 

reserves, banking facilities, and continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities 

Maturities of financial liabilities 

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments: 

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities 

Between I and 5 years 

  

  

  

  

  

  

thin I year and thereafter Total 
Asat 31 March 2022 

Trade payables 183.57 - 183.57 

Lease and other financial liabilities 303.41 462.39 765.80 

486.98 462.39 949.37 

eee Between | and 5 years 

As at 31 March 2021 Within T year and thereafter Teel 
Trade payables 154.28 - 154.28 

Lease and other financial liabilities 309.97 525.67 835.64 

464.25 525.67 989.92 
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iii) Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of 
risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include foreign currency 

receivables, deposits, investments in mutual funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment funds, units of investment trust and mvestment in other entities. 

  

a) Foreign currency risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The company’s exposure to 

the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency). The 

company's exposure to unhedged foreign currency risk as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 is not material. Currency risks related to the principal amounts of the company's 

US dollar trade receivables 

b) Interest rate risk 

Investment of short-term surplus funds of the company in liquid schemes of mutual funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment fund and investment trust provides 

high level of liquidity from a portfolio of money market securities and high quality debt and categorized as ‘low risk’ product from liquidity and interest rate risk perspectives 

Impact on profit before tax 
  

  

Sensitivity 

For the year ended For the year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

+ 5% change in NAY of mutual funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment fund and units of 

investment trust. 1,150.38 1,108.72 

- 5% change in NAV of mutual funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment fund and units of investment 

trust. (1,150.38) (1,108.72) 
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32 Segment information 
Opcrating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The Group has only one business segment which is business-to-business 

an interactive hub for domestic and intemational buyers and supplicrs and operates in a single business segment based on the nature of the products. the risks and returns, the organization structure and the intemal financial reporting 

systems. Hence the Group falls within a single opcrating segment "Business to business ¢-marketplace" 

marketplace. which acts as 

  

Information about geographical areus. 

The Group's revenue from continuing operations from extemal customers by location of operations and information of its non-current assets by location of assets are detailed below 

  

  

  

Revenue from external customers Non-current assets* 

For the year ended For the year ended As at As at 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

India TASR.O4 6.599 61 603.36 669.91) 

‘Others 76.81 96.01 - - 

7,534.85 6,695.62 603.36 669.90 
  

* Non-current assets exclude financial assets. investment in associates. deferred tax assets. tax asscts and post-employment benefit assets 

wo 3 Related party transactions 

i) Names of related parties and related party relationship: 

a) Individuals owning direetly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group that gives them Significant Influence over the Group and Key Management Personnel (KMP) 
Name Designation 

Dinesh Chandra Agarwal Managing director and CEO 
Brijesh Kumar Agrawal Whole time director 

Prateek Chandra Chief financial officer 

Manoj Bhargava Company Secretary 
Dhruy Prakash Non-executive director 
Rajesh Sawhney Independent director 

Elizabeth Lucy Chapman Independent director 
Vivek Narayan Gour Independent director 

b) Entities where Individuals and Key Management Personnel (KMP) as defined above exercise significant influence. 
Mansa Enterprises Private Limited 

c) Other related parties 

Indiaman Employee Benefit Trust (administered Trust to manage employees share based payment plans of the company) 

Indiamart Intermesh Employees Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme (administered Trust to manage post-employment defined benefits ef employees of the company} 

Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited (Associate) 
Ten Times Online Private Limited (Associate) (with effect from 1 September 2020) 

Truckhall Private Limited (Associate) 

Shipway Technology Private Limited (Associate) 

Agillos E-Commerce Private Lunited (Associate) 

Edgewise Technologies Private Limited (Associate) 

IB Monotaro Private Limited (Associate) 

  

ii) Key management personnel compensation 
  

  

For the year ended For the year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Short-term emplovee benefits 137.24 111.39 

Post-emplovment benefits 0.28 O13 

Other long-term employee benefits 036 = 

Employee share based payment 5.46 437 
  

  

143.31 
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33 Related party transactions (Cont'd) 

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with the related parties for the relevant financial year 

  

Particulars For the year ended 

31 March 2022 

For the year ended 

31 Mareh 2021 
  

Entities where KMP and Individuals exercise 

Significant influence 

Expenses for rent 

Mansa Enterprises Private Limited 

Key management personnel 

Recruitment and training expenses 

Dhrav Prakash 

Loans 

Mano Bhargava 

Director's sitting fees 

Dividend paid 

Dinesh Chandra Agarwal 

Bryesh Kumar Agrawal 

Prateek Chandra 
Manoj Bhargava 

Rajesh Sawhney 

Dhruv Prakash 

Vivek Narayan Gour 

Associates 

Investment in associates 

Truckhall Private Limited 

Shipway Technology Private Lumited 

Agillos E-Commerce Private Limited 

Edgewise Technologies Private Limited 

IB MonotaRO Private Limited 

Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limred 

Web & Advertisement services provided to 

Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited 

Intemet and online services availed 

Ten Times Online Private Limited 

Miscellaneous services provided to 

Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited 

Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust 
Repayment of loan given 

Share capital issued 

Interest free loan given 

Dividend paid     

1.73 

1.50) 

355 

129.46 
87.73 

1.46 
0.01 
0.08 

110.10 

182.00 

260.00 

133.45 

1,041.77 

615.50 

843 

O17   

1.59 

044 

L.l4 

0.05 

1.20 

1.35 

1.20 

  

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 

The transactions with related parties are entered on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year end 

are unsecured and interest free and settlement oceurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables ot 

payables. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related 

The following table discloses amounts due to or due from related parties at the year end 

  

Balance Outstanding at the year end 
As at 

31 March 2022 

As at 

31 March 2021 
  

Key management personnel 

Recruitment and training expenses payable 

Director's sitting fees 

Loans 

Investment in associates (At cost)* 

Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited 

Ten Times Online Private Limited 

Truckhall Private Limited 

Shipway Technology Private Limited 

Agillos E-Commerce Private Limited 

Edgewise Technologies Private Limited 

IB MonotaRO Private Limited 

Deferred Revenue 

Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited 

Loan given 

Indiamart Employee Benefit Trust     

1.50 

927.52 

0.93 

110.10 

182.00 

260.00 

133.45 

1,041.77 

1.01   

0.05 

312.02 

0.93 

0.47 

  

*Does not include share of loss of associate as accounted under equity method 
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34 Group information 
Information about subsidiaries and assoicates 

ind associate listed in the table below. 

  

‘The consolidated financial statements of the Group includes subsidia 

Name Principal activities Country of incorporation % interest 
| Asal Asat 

| 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

| facilitation services India Lo Lo    Hello Trade Online Private Lamited 

    

    
  

    

‘Tradezeal Online Private Limited Business facilitation services India loo Wo 
Ten Times Online Private Limited * Business facilitation services India - = 

Tolexo Online Private Lid Cloud based solution for SMEs India 106 100 
Pay With Indiamart Private Limited Payment facihtation India 100 100, 

Information about associate 
Ten Times Online Private Limited * Busi facihtation services India 3 * 

Sumply Vyapar Apps Private Limited Software and apps service providing company India 27 26 
‘Truckhull Private Limited Software and apps service providing company India 25 a 
Shipway Technology Private Limited Software and apps service providing company % . 
Agillos E-Commerce Private Limited Software and apps service providing company 2% - 
Edgewise Technologies Private Limited Software and apps service providing company 2% . 
IB Monotaro Private Limited E-Commerce company 6 = 

  

* The Parent Company diluted ils stake in Ten Times Online Private Linuted which was a wholly owned subsidiary on September 1. 2020. by selling its equity: stake to the tune of 70% Post this transaction, Ten 
Times Online Private Limited becomes an Associate of the parent company 
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35 Additional information 

‘tatements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

  

Name of the entity in the group 

  

Share in profit and loss Share in other Comprehensive income — Share in total Comprehensive incon 

  

  

As % of 
consolidated 
net assets 

  

As % of 
consolidated 

profit and loss 

INR 
million 

As % of consolidated 
other comprehensive 

ine 

  

itt As % of total ine 
; comprehensive million 

income 

  

  Parent 
Indiamart Intermesh Limited 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 
Balance as at 31 March 2021 

For the year ended 31 March 2022 
For the year ended 3] March 2021 

Subsidiaries 

Tolexo Online Private Limited 
Balance as at 31 March 2022 

Balance as at 31 March 2021 
For the year ended 31 March 2022 

For the year ended 31 March 2021 

Ten Times Online Private Limited 
(till September 1, 2020) 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 

Balance as at 3 March 2021 
For the year ended 31 Mari 

For the year ended 31 March 2021 
3022 

  

Hello Trade Online Pvt Lid 

Balance as al 31 March 2022 
Balance as at 31 March 2021 

For the year ended 31 March 2022 

For the year ended 31 March 2021 

  

Tradezeal Online Pvt Ltd 
Balance as at 31 Mareh 2022 
Balance as at 31 March 2021 

For the year ended 31 March 202? 

For the year ended 31 March 2021 

  

  

  

Pay with Indiamart Private Limited 

Balance as at 31 March 2 

Balanceas at 31 Mareh 2021 
For the year ended 31 March 20. 

For the year ended 31 March 2021 

    

Associate (accounting as per equity method) 
Simply Vyapar Apps Private Limited 
Balance as at 31 March 2022 
Balance as at 31 March 2021 
For the year ended 31 March 2022 
For the year ended 31 March 201 

  

Ten Times Online Private Limited 
(Post September 1, 2020) 
Balance as at 31 March 2022 

Balance as at 31 March 2021 
For the year endad 31 Mareh 2022 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 

  

    

‘Truckhall Private Limited 
Balance as.at 31 March 2022 
Balance as at 31 Mareh 2021 

For the year ended 31 Mareh 2 
For the year ended 31 March    

  

2 

Shipway Technology Private Limited 
Balance as al 31 March 2022 
Balance as at 31 March 2021 
For the year ended 31 March 2022 

For the year ended 31 March 2021 

Agillos E-Commerce Private Limited 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 
Balanceas at 31 March 2021 
For the year endedl 31 March 
For the year ended 31 March 2 

x     
  

  

Edger Technologies Private Limited 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 

Balance as at $1 March 2021 
For the year ended 31 March 2022 

For the year ended 31 March 2021 

1B Monotaro Private Limited 
Balance as at 31 March 2022 
Balance as at 31 March 2021 
For the year ended 31 March 2022 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 

Balance as at 31 March 2022 

Balance as at 31 March 202] 
For the year ended 31 Mareh 2022 

For the year endad 31 March 202 

    

Adjustment arising out of consolidation 
Balance as at 31 Mareh 2022 

Balance as at 31 Mareh 2021 
For the year ended 31 March 2022 

For the year ended 31 March 2021 

Total 

at 31 March 2022 
Balance as at 31 March 2021 

For the year ended 31 March 2022 
For the year ended 31 March 2021 

  

  

86.94%, 

99.92% 

“1.33% 
=LA8% 

0.00% 
0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

3.11% 

016% 

0.03% 
0.05% 

  

0.00% 
0.00% 

046% 
0.00% 

0.81% 

0.00% 

LAT 
0.00% 

ATP 

0.00% 

100.00% 
100,008 

18,921.41 
16.166.44 

  

(33.64) 
(238.93) 

(0.02) 
0.03 

677.61 
26.22) 

TAR 

8.69 

787.62 
269.94 

100.98 

175.97 

254.89 

  

1,037.60. 

21,762.81 

16,179.95 

  

(3,022.28) 
(71.10) 

18,740,533 

16,108.85 

18.12% 
104.20% 

  

0.00%, 
OAR. 

0.00% 
0.00% 

ASS 
A16% 

0.05% 
0.03% 

341% 

A).93%. 

0.00% 
0.03% 

D320 
1.00% 

0.22% 

0.00% 

ATR 
0.00% 

0.00% 
0.00% 

“0.15% 
0.00% 

100.00% 
100,00 

  

(92.72) 
(73.46) 

1.92) 

(0.05) 
(0.04) 

(15.90) 
(432) 

(97.83) 
(25.67) 

(0.93) 

(9.12) 

(6.22) 

GAN 

(0.04) 

(4.17) 

  

110.61 
46.18 

2,976.18 

2,797.74 

139.9% 

102.88% 

39.91% 
sB81%. 

0.00% 
0.93% 

0.00% 
0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 
0.00% 

0.00% 
0.00%, 

8.00% 
0.00%. 

0.00% 
0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 
0.00% 

0.00% 
8.00%. 

0.00% 
6.00% 

100,00 

100.0% 

4.28 108,15% 3,102.52 
(18.29) 104.21% 2848 4 

    

- 0.00% - 
(O17) 4d (1209) 

: 0.00% (0.05) 
. 0.00% (0.04) 

- A35% 5.90) 
- 0.16% (4.32) 

0.05% (LSly 
0.03% 0 0.77 

e -Ral% 
z AIP 

  

> 0.00% - 

- 03% 0.93) 

- 32% 12) 
¥ 0.00% S 

- 0.22% (6.22) 
~ 0.00% e 

1.18% 61) 
0.00% 8 . 

- 0.00% (0.04) 
z 0.00% 

15% 
i 0.00% 2 

  

306 100.0% 2,868.63 
778) 100,000 

  

2 110.61 
= 4618 

3.06 2,979.24 

(17.78) LING 
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36 Contingent liabilities and commitments 

a) Contingent liabilities 

= ) 

ow 2 

As at Asat 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

(i) Income-tax demand (refer notes (a) and (b) below) 302.68 302 68 

(a) In respect of Assessment year 2016-17, a demand was raised on Tolexo Online Private limited duc to addition of income relating to receipts of securities premium against share allotment made to IndiaMART InterMESH Limited 

and accordingly the losses to be carried forward by the Company have been reduced from INR 719.22 million to INR 482.07 million ( Tax impact @25,17% INR 59.69 Million) . The matter is pending with CIT(Appeals), The 
Company is contesting the demand and the management believes that its position is possible to be upheld in the appellate process. No tax expense has been acerucd in the consolidated financial statements for tax demand raised, 

(b) In respect of Assessment year 2017-18, a demand of INR 242.99 million was raised on Tolexo Online Private limited due to addition of income relating (o reccipts of sccuritics premium against share allotment made to 
IndiaMART InterMESH Limited, The Company is contesting the demand and the management believes that its position is possible to be upheld in the appellate process No tax expense has been accrued in the consolidated financial 
statements for tax demand raised 

(i) On February 28. 2019. a judgment of the Supreme Court of India interpreting certain statutory defined contribution obligations of employees and emplovers altered historical understandings of such obligations, extending them to 

cover additional portions of the employee's income However. the judgment is not explicit if such interpretation may have retrospective application resulting in increased contribution for past and future years for certain employees of 

the Group. The Group. based on an internal assessment. evaluated that there are numerous interpretative challenges on the retrospective application of the judgment which results in impracticability in estimation of and timing of 

paymicnt and amount involved. As a result of lack of implementation guidance and interpretative challenges involved. the Group 1s unable to reliably estimate the amount involved. Accordingly. the Group shall evaluate the amount of 

provision. if any. on there being further clarity on the matter. 

   

(iii) The Group is involved in various lawsuits. claims and proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. the outcome of which is inherently uncertain, Some of these matters include speeulative and frivolous claims for 

substantial or indeterminate amounts of damages. The Group records a hability when it is both probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated, Significant judgment is required to determine both 

probability and the estimated amount. The Management reviews these provisions and adjusts these provisions accordingly to reflect the impact of negotiations, setthements. rulings. advice of legal counsel, and updated information 

The Management belicves that the amount or estimable range of reasonably possible loss, will not, cithcr individually or in the aggregate. have a material adverse effect on its business. financial position. results er cash flows of the 

Group. with respect to loss contingencies for legal and other contingencies as at 31 March 2022 

    

(iy) The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the Company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The effective date from which the changes are applicable is 

yet to be notified and the final rules are yet to be framed, The Company will carry out-an evaluation of the impact and record the same in the financial statements in the period in which the Code becomes effeetive and the related rules 

are published 

Capital and other commitments 

- As at 31 March 2022. the Group has NIL capital commitment (31 Mareh 2021: 13 Millions) 

Investment in associates 
The Group has investment in associates as on 31 March 2022 (Refer Note 7). The aggregate summarised financial information in respect of the Group's associates accounted for using the equity method is as below: 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Carrying value of the Group's interest in associates 2490.27 269.94 

The Group's share in loss for the year in associates (122.49) (26.60) 
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38 Additional Regulatory Information 
a) - Ratios 

Ratio Numerator Denami ‘Current year Previous year “% Variance” 
Current R: (in times) ‘Current Assets Current labilities 370 4Al 16% 

Debt-Equity Ratio (in times) Total debt (represents lease liabilities) (| Sharcholder's equity 

0.03 0.04 24%) 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times) Earning available for debt service Debt Service (Refer Note 3 below) 

(Refer Note 2 below) 598 4.85 23% 
Return on Equity Ratio (in %) Profit after tax. attributable to cquity | Average Sharchalder’s Equity 

shareholders 17.08% 29.67% 42% 
Trade Receivables turnover ratio (in times) Net Credit sales during the y ear ‘Average trade receivable 

24).63) W.78 O1% 

Trade payables turnover ratio (in times) Other expenses Average trade payable 

10.54) BBS) 19%) 

Net capital turnover ratio (in times) Revenue from operations Working capital (Current Assets- 

Current liabilities) 042 036 16% 
Net profit ratio (in %) Net profil after tax Revenue from operations 39.50% 41.78% 5%] 

Return on Capital employed (ROCE) (in %) Earning before interest and taxes Capital employed (Refer Note 4 
below) 20.34% 23.36% 13%) 

Return on investment (ROI) (in %) Income generated from invested funds | Average invested funds in treasury 

(Refer Note $ below) investments (Refer Note 6 below} 442% 7.06% 237%               
  

Notes 

1. Total debt represents Iease liabilities. 

2 Eaming available for debt service = Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and antortizations + Interest + ather adjustments like gain on sale of Fixed assets. shared based expenses ete 
3 Debt service = Lease Payments (Iierest + Principal) 

4 Capital Employed = Total shareholder's equity + Deferred tax liability + Lease liabilities 

5, Income generated from invested funds = FVTPL gain on mutual funds, bonds, debentures. units of alternative investment funds and investment trust + Interest income from Bank deposits + Interest income on inter corporate deposits 

6G. Average invested funds in treasury investments = Average of (Average quarterly opening treasury investments and quarterly closing treasury investments #) 

# Treasury Investments = Mutual funds, bonds, debentures, units of alternative investment funds and investment trust + Inter = corporate deposits + Bank deposits 

7. Average is calculating based on simple average of opening and closing balances 

  

in 23% 

  

* Explanation where variance in ratio is more 1 

Return on Equity Rativ 

On account of QIP issue in the last quarter of previous financial year. the average net worth has become higher in the current year subsequently. resulting in lower return on cquity/capital employed in year ended 31 March 2022. 
= Trade Receivables turnover ratio 

Increase in trade receivable turnover ratio is on account of better realisation of trade receivables, 

- Return on investment (ROL) 

RBI had taken measures during COWID-19 in the month of March 2020 hence cut interest rates drastically. and introduced ample liquidity measures. We generated high returns in our liquid fund portfolio duc to these liquidity measures in FY 
2020-2021, In F.Y. 2022 fixed income investments generated lower returns duc to high liquidity in markets, 
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38 Additional Regulatory Information 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

b) - Relationship with Struck off companies 

Year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Name of the struck off company Ratire of Relationship Transaction | Balance Transaction | Balance 

Transactions amount outstanding amount outstanding 

7% . Revenue and contract 
1|SG Fabs Kitchen Equipment Private Limited 

liabilities tomer * * * * 

2|Amro Cranes Private Limited Revenue and contract 
liabilities Customer 7 * * e 

3|Kumar Ceramics Private Limited Revenue and contract} 
liabilities Customer -* =" * -* 

4| Aspen Systems Private Limited Revenue and contract 
liabilities }Customer -* = ” ” 

- - - Revenue : 
5] Vikas Scientific Instruments Private Limited evenue and contract 

liabilities (Customer ca * * ” 

a Ri 6] Mars Sterile Solutions Private Limited Revenue and contract 
habilities Customer = - * * 

7|Parameshwary Embed Technologies Private Limited Revetiue and contract 
liabilities Customer * * - Ba 

8] Nirvana Fashion Private Limited Revenge and contract) 
liabilities Customer -* + -* -# 

9]Lemison Laundry Equipment Private Limited Revenue and contract 
liabilities Customer = > -* -* 

10]Lorman Induction Technology Private Limited Revenue and contract] _ 
liabilities Customer * * | -* 

11] Advantech Crane Automation Private Limited Revenue and conte 
liabilities Customer * 7 * + 

12] Giriraj Steels Private Limited Revenue and contract 
liabilities Customer * * + 2 

13] First Office Solutions India Private Limited Revenue and contract 
iiabilities Customer 7 - * * 

14|Mollimax Suppliers Private Limited Revenue and contract 
habilities Customer -* ae ” * 

15]Sunflower Natural Perfume Private Limited Revenue and contract 
liabilities Customer -* -* = ” 

16|Woman Ants Food Private Limited Revenue and:contract 
liabilities Customer -* * * * 

17] Art Of Masala Foods Private Limited Revenue and contract 
liabilities ‘Customer -* -* * * 

18]Ratnaprava Industries Private Limited Revenue and contract 
liabilities _ ‘Customer -* -* = * 

19] Aps Equipments Private Limited Revenue and contract 
liabilities Customer -* -* 2 * 

20] Leo Royal Techserve Private Limited Revenue and contract} . ; 
abilities Customer * ed * 

Aditya Inkjet Technologies Private Limited Revenue and.contract} 
liabilities Customer * * ae ” 

22|Mercatum Technology Private Limited Revenus.and' contract 
liabilities Customer = * * .* 

23] Rajaratna Industries Private Limited Revenue. and contract 
liabilities Customer ot * =# -* 

24] Micto-Fiow Contamination Solutions (India) Private Limited [Revenue and contract 
liabilities Customer a * -* -# 

25{Sun Sports Private Limited Revenue andicontraay 
liabilities Customer * ” Ei -* 

26|Maitti Infosefi Private Limited Revenue atic ciniract 
liabilities Customer * 7 + es 

27/R. M_ Retail Solutions Private Limited Revenue and comtract 

liabilities Customer - ~ * -* 

28|Navya Automation System Private Limited Revenue and contract . 
liabilities Customer 7 * + * 

29| Alba Nova Life Science Private Limited Revenue and contract] 
liabilities Customer -* * * * 

30|Supreme Reliable Retail Private Limited Revenue and contzucl) 
liabilities Customer ee * = - 

31 | Ashwattha Enterprises Private Limited Revenue and epnttosl) 
liabilities Customer -* -* Pid * 

32 E-Systems Techno Private Limited Revenueand contract) 
liabilities Customer -* -* * * 

33|Dey Electromedical Private Limited Revenue and contract 
liabilities }Customer -* -* + # 

34] Aster Automotive Private Limited Revenue and contract} 
liabilities ‘Customer -* -* * + 

35) Hottip India Private Limited Revenue and contract 
liabilities Customer -* -* ” ” 

= = 3 2 R d 36] Safezonce Enviro Engineers Private Limited Ren CHU and CORA 
liabilities: ‘Customer - -* + ” 

37] Agi Industries Private Limited Revenue andicontract| 
liabilities Customer ” * * * 

38] Crown Filtech Private Limited Revenue and contest 
liabilities Customer + * * * 

39] Jp Energy Svstems India Private Limited Revenus.and contract 
liabilities Customer * = * -* 

40] Mahavir Intertors & Projects Private Limited Revenue and contract 
liabilities Customer -* -* -* -# 

41] Atharva Industrial Equipments Private Limited Revenueand:contract| 
liabilities Customer * * -* -* 

42] Fire Engitech Private Limited Revenue and contract . 
liabilities Customer * * -* -* 

43|Taamini Crop Science Private Limited Revenuscandcontract|( 
habilities Customer = ar * -* 

44] Sidhi Vinayak Footwears Private Limited Revenue and contract] 
liabilities Customer ” “ * 5                   
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Year ended 

31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021 

. - Revenue and contract 45) Appolex Road Equipments Private Limited 
PP ae liabilities Customer ial 7 -* -* 

Revenue and contract 46)Nizanu'S Exim Private Limited 
Habilities Customer * - ” 7 

Revenue and contract 
47|Nathanz Chemicals Pnyate Limited a 

: liabilities Customer___[# = 2 - 
i Revenue and contract 

48 | Starlife Enterprises India Private Limited ae B liabilities Customer | “ - - 
. Revenue and contract 

49)Maanam Corporation (Ope) Private Limited : 
me te liabilities Customer oa -* ” = 

ss. Rey 50|Intersofikk (India) Private Limited evenue andcontrncl) . 
liabilities Customer - |. + * 

‘ gat Revenue and contract 
51 ]Visaag Technologies Private Limited ee = e : liabilities Customer —_|* + “ “ 
52)Fairhomes Interior Private Limited Res eae and contest * 

liabilities }Customer Ee -* * * 
sly 5 and cont 53|Z-Axis Decors Private Limited Revenve Soni n 

liabilities ‘Customer Ei : = * 
x Revenue and contract| 54] Aguaz Water Private Limited 

liabilities Customer ey, “ -* + 
ze é s i Revenue and contract 
55)|Sharmila Manpower Solutions Private Limited 

Fi liabilities Customer -* -* * + 

5 Revenue and contract 
56] Venerate Exports Private Limited = 

P liabilities Customer “ * = -* 
5 a debi Revenue and contract 
57) Midshipmite Recnuiters Private Limited Sears ase liabilities Customer __|.* * “ -* 
z o 7 Revel a 58] Alen Fab Private Limited wenuerand contract . 

liabilities Customer = * ot -* 
z 3 = tra 59] Jacob And Sons Trading Private Limited Revenne.and contract le 

liabilities Customer ea z * * 
Rev 60| Green Velly Pesticides Private Limited Revenue and contract 

liabilities Customer = -* + * 
7 4 Revenue and centract 

61] Virsun Organic India Private Limited 5 
2 liabilities Customer * * = * 

Revenue and contract 
62) Axelerant Infra (India) Private Limited 4 ae 

! liabilities Customer 7 -* * Sa 
: é Revenue and contract 

63]Isa\go Technologies Private Limited 4 
2 a liabilities Customer * -¥ ut ae 

a el id 64|Se Consultaney Private Limited Revenue and contract 
liabilities Customer - -* * * 

“3 Re acl 68|Taral Pharma Machinery Private Limited Menue an:conret| 
2 liabilities Customer -* -* = * 

“1 . . Reve id cont 66] Tera Ventura Agro And Textiles Private Limited VENUE and CORIBEL 
liabilities Customer Ee oad = * 

eons Revi IL 
67]Dinora Intemational India Private Limited evenue-and ect " ‘ ‘ 

liabilities Customer - - * 2 
- - Reve ‘a 68] Shri Laxmi Chemicals And Industries Private Limited ey eTUC And Cama 

liabilities Customer -t * |-* * 
f @ and 69] Biofix Infiniumz Private Limited Re enue and cOnlrbet % 1 ‘ 

liabilities Customer : - -* - 
. . Revenue and contract] 

70) Aasara Pre-Fab Private Limited 
: : Jiabilities Customer -* * a. a 

nue and a 71 |Hansru Industries Private Limited Revenuie and contract 
Hiabilities Customer ” = -* |-* 

5 ies as Revenue and contract 
72) Informatics E-Tech (India) Limited é ioe liabilities Customer [+ “ “ - 

i « event id contr: 73] Diamenta Jewels Private Limited Revers and contreet . 
liabilities Customer : * ed =* 

and 74| Sapphire Industrial Products Private Limited Reveriue:cnd.contfact| . . 
liabilities Customer * : -* * 
Reve 73| Aastha Aurtech Private Limited ie and contest) 
Habilities Customer : * = eg 
Revenue and contract 76|Super Transports Private Limited 

y me liabilities Customer oF -* * 7 
Revenue and contract 

77/Yo Dry Fruits Private Limited a +s 
liabilt Customer “ = 2 -* 

‘ Rev 
78| Green Handle Products Private Lin reveaueand contract] 

liabilities: Customer * =# * * 
a te Revenue and contract] 

79) Sha Hydraulics Private Limited . 
S liabilities ‘Customer * =* ~ * 

Z : a tract 80| Prinz Infosoft Systems Private Limited Revenueand contrac . 
liabilities ‘Customer -* ~ = = 

E : Reve aL 81 /Connectia Tech Services Private Limited evenue and contrac . . 
liabilities Customer -* - * = 

’ Revenue and contract 
82] Accu Meditech Private Limited 

liabilities Customer Eas -* + * 
a 7 nue and a 83] Access 1 Solution Digital Marketing Private Limited Revenue and contract , 

habilities Customer - * “ * 
. * Revenui tract 84| Panacea Natural Greens India Private Limited eyenuband-conttacly . 7 

liabilities Customer bd - “4 
sik. Revenue and contract 

85} Kazhugu Alavukol Private Limited - e . liabilities Customer__[-* ” ’ fe 
Revenue and contract 

86] Abpx Pharma Private Limited ‘s 
B liabilities Customer “ * * 7 

. ” and a 87] Bectaair Solutions Private Limited Revenseand contract 
liabilities Customer a = * - 

88] Aloe Pharmacy Private Limited Revenue and contract| Customer * * + Dis 

g . Revenue and contract 
89)Sant Krupa Steel India Private Limited se 

F liabilities Customer at 7 -* of 
evenuie and contract 

90] Eurosia Irrigation Systems Private Limited Bere ¢ 
liabilities Customer - * + +             
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Year ended 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Z : e and contract 91/K. 8, R, Brothers Private Limited Revenue nd rontiaet| 
liabilities Customer =" * ” 

Revenue and contract 
92)Jum es & Tours Private Li ‘ boodeep Adventur ur te Limited liabilities SaeReE Be ly ® 

- Revenue an 93| Exhicon World Exhibit Private Limited Sve ue ere conthel Z liabili Customer = : * 

‘ Revenue and contract] 
94)Maxin Hydro Dynamic India Private Limited ~ * * liabilities Customer : * - 

5 = p vt and contract 95] Nesa Radiation Solutions Private Limited Revenue . . . 
liabilities ‘Customer : = a 

‘ . Revenue an Fact 96| Br Toys And Furnitures Private Limited Snug oe cot : : 
= liabilities Customer - E + 

97|Js Hawkers India Private Limited Revels and eonttacl 
liabilities Customer * “ -* 

. Revenue and contract 
98) Saral Filteration Private Limited s 

liabilities Customer * a -# 

e a ntract 99] Embassy Stones Private Limited Rey eniigasiden . . . 
liabilities Customer - - - 
Re a 100]Lavl Automotive India Private Limited evenue and contract . 
habilities Customer E ” i 

c . Revenue and contract 101]R Tex Spin Mach Private Ltd. ney 
m at liabilities Customer * - * 

gas A Revenue act 
102] Aarts Creative Studio Ope Private Limited Revenue and contr . 

liabilities Customer -* 3 * 
i : 5 Revenue and contract 

103)/K. P. Fabricators & Engineers (Gujarat) Priv aces 
e Coivaret Eiivate Camailed liabilities Customer -* ” * 

Revenue and contract] 104| Mazda Agencies Private Limited + * = Customer -* * - 
= 7 Revenue and contract 

105] Manmohan Marketing Private Limited : . 1. ¥ a liabilities (Customer - - - 
- Revenue 106] Vacatio Leisures Private Limited neiand contac . . , 

liabilities ‘Customer - - : 
ore 7 z v id contract] 107] Fast Care India Pest Control Private Limited Hes eae cont * * liabilities Customer : i : 

A oT Revenue and contract 108 | Fannar Exi imited a Fannar Exim Private Limites liabilities ‘Custoner * + * 

Revenue and contract 
109] Microsi imited . 

osidd India Private Limite liabilities Customer = -* .* 
Revenue and contract 110] Infrawave Ites Private Limited Sa ira g i . 

liabilities Customer : - Ee 
“ a . Revenue and contract 

111} Disti (india) Private Limited 
(india “ liabilities Customer * - F 

wc, Revenue and contract 112] Dia Overseas Private Limited a ‘ * * liabilities Customer : al - 
, Revenue and contract 

113) Bizkraf Concepts Private Limited 5 m liabilities Customer 2 “ - 
= Revenue and c 114] Primero Meditech Private Limited sets | : % r 

Customer - a 4 

5 Revenue and contract 
115]Grey Box Technologies Private Limited fi z - * * liabilities Customer “ - * 

Revenue and contract 
116) Purofvhealth nited 

imefihale Reivate Lis liabilities Customer -* * + 
- Revenue and contract 117) Aplast Intemational Private Limited : ia # < % liabilities Customer ~ - 3 

oe Revenue and contract 118] Axiomata Elevators Private Limited nahin * " liabilities |Customer ~ - Ed 

A Revenue and contract] 
119]Amruta Pharmaceutical Private Limited i * * liabilities ‘Customer - - - 

contract 120]Luxorian Corporate Services Private Limited Hess erie are Coils . 
liabilities ‘Customer * - * 

s Revenu 121|Tgs Vertical Transportation Private Limited ead epriceney . ‘ ‘ liabilities Customer : ~ S 
= Revenue and contract 

122}Gde Agro Foods Private Limited 
as liabilities Customer on -* 2 

‘ Revenue and contract 
123 s India P Li Purplepro It Solutions India Private Limited liabilities Canine ie * - 

E as Z Revenue and contract 
124) Telesis Consul vices Private Limite ~ 

pultuney Serv ae ted habilities Customer = * 2 
sl Pare, . Revenue and contre 

128) Tot'Strunk Private Limited Re ente ant act . 
liabilities Customer : = -* 

3 s evenue and contract 126] Goeco Solar Power Private Limited Reveni , . 
liabilities Customer + - -* 

Re ul a 127]Vividha Ants Private Limited Revenue and contract . . . 
liabilities Customer 2 - B 

7 <i i Revenue and contract 128 | Striker Security Services Private Limited : " . . . Z liabilities Customer - - - 
3 Revenue and contract 

129] Hentage Manufacturing Company Private Limited i. : ee liabilities Customer “ E # 
Revenue and contract 130) Brivon Pharmatec Private Limited oe 7 . . 
liabilities Customer a a 2 

‘ Revenue and contract 
131/D1 Engineering And Constructions (Ope) Private Limi - 

EE ° (Oro) ave Limited liabilities Customer -* * * 
Revenue and contract 

132|Incon Technologies Private Limited a x 
: . liabilities Customer -* = + 

Revenue and contract 
133|Eleczio (Ope) Private Limited 

atop " liabilities Customer -" 7 ” 

« . Revenue and contract 
134]Lunatic Crafiwork Private Limited A - 

liabilities (Customer * ~ 2 
* . 7 Revenue and contract 135] Akara Exim Private Limited 7 * liabilities ‘Customer - - fad 

7 . 6 = evenue and contract 136] Ovata Seal Construction Private Limited Rereave . “ 
liabilites ‘Customer - a *       
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Year ended 

31 March 2022 

. x . Revenue and contract 137|Dpass Multi Solutions Private Limited a 
E liabilities Customer es * * -* 

< Revenue and contract 38/Su janufs Private Li : 7 138] Strawsun Manufacture Private Limited liabilities Custoney i . * os 

f e y Revenue and contract 
139) Gintara Priv mited sree. ~ intara Private Li liabilities Customer -* * 7 + 

was Revenue and contract) 140] Solsun Power (Ope) Private Limited 5 2 * + liabilities ‘Customer = : he : 
. Revenue and contract 

141] Ashwanthana Private Limited 2 
Ashy : liabilities Customer |-* “ -* -* 

Revenue and contract 
142] Abba © & Care Private Limite: s é 

a Cure “ 4 liabilities Customer = oa “ -* 

F Revenue and contract 
143) Dream Success Inframart Private Limited * 

uccess | liabilities Customer * “ * -* 
Revenue and contract 144] We Sprout Landscapers (Opc) Private Limited = p pers (Ope) liabilities Customer | 2 = * 

~ Revenue and contract 143] Ab Brothers Private Limited (Ope 
(pe) liabilities Customer |-* * * * 

. s . Revenue and contract 
146)/Nlive Electronics India Private Limited 5 

nine Eesctronics ime liabilities Customer “ =* * * 
s - os Revenue and contract 147]Clarismart Technologies Private Limited ; aaa fo 3 % 4 . liabilities Customer - ~ - : 

. . Revenue and contract 
148] Kings Ai ens Impex Private Limited (Ope: sgitas - ings. And Queens Impex Private (Ope) liabilities Customer f+ * * - 

pe re Revenue and contract] 
149] Majesty Aaron Elevators India Private Limited seagate + 

Hea ee liabilities Customer -* * * Ped 
Zi + Revenue and contract} 150] Alfatech Thermal Engineers Private Limited aban 5 ‘ 7 “ liabilities }Customer = = =, - 
Sale. 5 Revenue and contract 151] Kagazi Crafts Private Limited 

* liabilities ‘Customer of cial * * 

z ‘ venue and Fi 152/Oum Sound & Acoustic Private Limited Revenus and contract . , . : liabilities Customer : ie fe ~ 
z 4, “ Rev tract 153|Seastar Watersport Products Private Limited evenueand Sapien # * i liabilities Customer 3 - if ba 
Salas ., ss Revenue and contract 154|Jingea At i imited 

gen ohn Erivate L liabilities Customer * -* “f = 
Pr . Revenue and 153]Naksh Technologies Private Limited ee coma * * < ¥ abilities Customer : 2 ra - 

‘i g Revenue and contract 156|Rreotofly Online Services Private Limited a ‘ * % “ liabilities Customer = : : 7 
a * Revenue and contract 157) Rubicon Ro Private Limited . . ubloon Re:Eny liabilities Customer -* * * * 
7 Revenue and contract 

158) Aqua Purity Indusines Private Limited 5 a a liabilities Customer __|-* + 2 ” 
159|Puran Associates Private Limited : Shareholders #{- = : : 
160| Avanti Realtors Private Limited 5 Shareholders #]- a : = 
161 |Rishiroop Polymers Pxt Ltd * Shareholders #]- | = : 
162]Ratna Commercial Enterprises Pvt Ltd : Shareholders #]- : - :   
  

* Less than INR 0.5 Millions. 

# Shareholders means persons holding the securities of the company. 

 



Indiamart Intermesh Limited 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 

(Amounts in INR million, unless otherwise stated) 

39 Events after the reporting period 

a) The Group has evaluated all the subsequent events through 28 April 2022, which is the date on which these consolidated financial statements 

were issued, and no events have occurred from the balance sheet date through that date except for matters that have already been considered in 

the consolidated financial statements. 

b) The group acquired 100% equity ownership in Busy Infotech Private Limited on 06 April 2022 for the aggregate consideration of INR 5,000 

Million thereby becoming the wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. 

c) Dividend 

Dividends declared by the Company are based on the profit available for distribution. On April 28 2022, the Board of Directors of the Company 

have proposed a final dividend of INR 2/- per share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2022 subject to the approval of shareholders at the 

Annual General Meeting. 

As per our report of even date attached 
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